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RONYMS, ABBREVIATIONS AND GTOSSARY OF TERMS

ronyms ond Abbreviolions

AG
CE
CET
CP
cs
DO
EP7
ERP

FY

HR

ICP
ICT
IFRS

rsc

KIPP

KLD
KLD

KLIP

SCA
SM
TPCS

Fidu

resp

LPO o
K-C

MLD
MoU
MSM
NCC
PFM
PS

PSAS

PSC

I

Access to Governmenl Procurement Opportunities
Chief Execulive Officer
Common Eff luent Treotment Plon
Certified Public Accountont
Cobinet Secretory
Dote of Birth
Exporling Processing Zones Authorily
Enterprise Resource Plonning
Finonciol Yeor
Humon Resources
lnstituie of Certified Public Accountonis of Kenyo
lnformotion Communicotion Technology
lnternoiionol Finonciol Reporting Slondords
lnternotionol Public-Sector Accounling Stondords
lnspectorole of Stote Corporotion
Kenyo Associotion of Monufocturers
Kenyo lnstitute of Public Policy Reseorch ond Anolysis
Kenyo Leother Development Authority
Kenyo Leolher Developmenl Council
Kenyo Leother lndusiriol Pork
Koriokor-Common Monufocturing Focilily
Locol Purchose Order/ Locol Service Order
Monogement Advisory Committee
Million Litre per Doy
Memorondum of Understonding
Micro, Smoll & Medium Enterprises
Noirobi City County Government
Public Finonce Monogement
Principol Secretory
Public Sector Accounting Stondord Boord
Public Service Commission
Siote Corporotions ond Advisory Committee
Squore Meters
Troining & Production Centre for Shoes lndustry

B: Gl sory of Terms

ry Monogemenl- Members of Monogement directly enirusted with the
sibility of finonciol resources of the orgonizotion

Co rolive Yeor- Meons the prior period.

llt



Ken/o teolher Developmenl Council
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2. KEY COUNCIT INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(o) Bockground informolion
The Kenyo Leolher Development Council (KLDC) is o Stote Corporolion
by lhe Governmenl of Kenyo under the Kenyo Leother Developmenl Cr
201 I (Legol Notice No. I 14 of the Kenyo Gozette Supplement No
September 201 1, under the Stote Corporotion Act (Cop 446), lows ol
Council wos initioted os o speciolized ogency to drive ihe Governntent':
the development of leolher indusiry. To ochieve this, the Council is r

reguloie ond focilitote the growth of the industry. The principol mor
Council is to drive the tronsformotion of the leother volue choin in the Cc
row moteriol/semi-processed export driven sector to o finished leot
monufocturing industry. KLDC is therefore o key driver of the Kenyo Kwor
Bottom-Up Economic Tronsformotion Agendo IBEIAI 2022 - 2027"
monufocturing pillor. The roodmop to this success is embedded ,

objectives which specificolly oddress the key chollenges focing it. T

objectives ore oligned to ihe Council's mondote.

(b) PrincipolAclivilies
The principol octivity/f unction of lhe Council os mondoled by Ke

Developmenl Council Order.20ll (Legol Noiice No. 114 of the Ke

Supplement No. I l3 of 9tn September 201 l. under the Stoie Corporoti,
446), lows of Kenyo ore:
i) To provide odvisory services to the Cobinet Secretory on motter

processing of ond lrode in hides, skins, leother ond leother goods
purpose;

ii) To promote, direct, coordinole, regulole, ond hormonize oll ocl
leother sector;

iiil To oversee licensing in the leother secior;
iv) To undertoke reseorch ond development octivities in the leother ind
v) To enforce complionce with set stondords in colloborotion with o

instilutions in the industry.
vil To mobilize technicol ond finonciol supporl for the leolher sector.
vii) To collecl, slore, onolyze, ond disseminote doto on leqther.
viii) To perform ony other function, os the Cobinet Secretory moy considr
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(c)

(d)

(e)

I

Tc be o leoding ogency in lronsforming ond promoting
excellence in developmenl of leolher volue choin lo mqke it
qlcbolly compeiilive

h
I

Development Council
t Fraoncb, Srorrrranar lot t,,/c yaor enda<l 3Or Juna, 2023

Monogemenl
Council's doy-to-doy Monogement wos under the following key orgons:
Boord of the Council
Chief Executive Offi cer/Secretory
he Secretoriot

lor1| Monogemenl
Key Monogement Personnel who held office during the finonciol yeor ended
June 2023 ond who hod direct fiduciory responsibility ore:
t*funaror, Ndm!
Chief Executive Officer Dr. lssock M. Noor, PhD
Director, Technicol Services Mr. Chorles Ndungu
Director, Coroorote Services Mr. Mohommednoor A. lsocko
Corporotion Secretory /Heod of Legol Ms Corolyne Cheruiyot
Monoger, Finonce & Accounts CPA Albert Ariku Ekodoi
Prinbipol Supply Choin Monogemenl Officer Mr. Erick Rithoo Kinoti
Ag. Principol lnternol Auditor Don Kochuwoi

lory Overslghl Anongemenls
Boord of Direclors ore the governing body for the Council providing oversight
tions. ln dischorging its duties, the Boord delegotes ils role to vorious committees:
nce & Governonce, Humon Resource, Risk & Complionce, Technicol & Strotegy
Audlt. The resolutions of the Boord ore implemented by the Monogement.
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Kenyo Leather Developmenl Council
Ann|Jol Rapott & flnoncrq, Sloremontr for rhe Yeat endod 3Oh June, 2023

COUNCIL BANKER

Kenyo Commerciol Bonk

P. O. Box 14959- 00800

NAIROBI, KENYA

REGISTERED OFFICE

Kenyo [eother bevelopmenl Council
P.O. Box 14480-00800

CPA Cenlre Sfh Floor

Along Thiko Highwoy
NAIROBI-KENYA.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Auditor Generol
Otfice of the Auditor Generol
Anniversory Towers, University Woy
P.O. Box 30084-00100

NAIROBI, KENYA.

PRINCIPAT TEGAL ADVISOR

The Attorney Generol
Stote Low Office -Horombee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112-00200
NAIROBI, KENYA.

COUNCIT CONTACT

Cell-Phone: 07 0461 7 7 05 /0709385000

Emoil: info@leothercouncil.qo.ke
http://www.leothercouncil.go.ke
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. BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COUNCIL

2

c
c

. Mohomed A. Adon
irperson of the Boord

opi. Mohomed A. Adon born 7tn Jonuory, 1965 wos
oppointed Choirmon of the KLDC Boord vio gozette notice
No. 4390 of 3rd April 2023. He holds on Executive Moster of
Business Administrotion in Aviotion from Moi University. He
olso holds on Airline Tronsport License ond Commerciol
Pilot's Course from the Quoliflight Troining lnc, Fortworth,
Texos, USA. He is on Aircroft Type Roting Exominer ond
lnstrumenl Roting Exominer by the Kenyo Civil Aviotion
Authority (formerly Directorote of Civil Aviotion). He
previously served os the Technicol Director ond is currenfly
the Monoging Director, Bluebird Aviotion, on oir chorter
compony speciolizing in oir tronsport of corgo, possengers,
rescue ond medicol evocuotions; thot he cojounded in
1992 ond continues to operote.

(-

c Mlchoel K. Nyongi
Member

CPA. Michoel Nyongi born 1975 is on independenl member
oppointed to the KLDC, Boord of Directors by the Cobinet
Secretory, Ministry of Agriculture ond Livestock
Development vide Gozette Notice No. 4396 ol 3rd April
2023. He holds o BSC in lnternotionol Business Administrotion
from USIU, o Certified Public Accountont of Kenyo (CpA-K).
Certified Public Secretory of Kenyo (CPS-K). ond on ACFE,
ond is currently pursuing o Moster of Science in Finonce ond
lnvestments of the University of Noirobi. He is well-versed in
inlernotionol occounting stondords, inlernolionol finonciol
reporting stondords, finonciol modeling, budgeting, ond tox
oudit monogement. He hos over 25 yeors of industry
experience. He presently serves os the Chief Finonciol
Officer ot lberofrico Power (EA) ond Thiko Power. He
formerly worked of Comtec Group os o senior occountont
ond finonce ond odministrotion monoger. os well os Hoshi
Empex ond St. Honnoh's School os on occouniont. He is

octively involved in the community ond is cunently the
coptoin of Kiombu Golf Club. He wos the club's treosurer for
the previous two yeors.

v
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Annud,l Rapoi e Flnoncro, Sloremerth ,or rhe Yeot ended 30th Jvne. 2023

Ms. Florence born 1967 is on independr
oppointed to the KLDC. Boord of Directors by

Secretory, Ministry of Agriculiure on(

Development vide Gozeite Notice No. 439t

2023. She is o seosoned former with more tho
experience. Also, she hos over l0 yeors'expe
bonking sector hoving worked for bolh Kenyo
Bonk ond Cooperotive Bonk. She olso worked
of the President for 4 yeors. She holds o

Secretoriol Studies, ond o certificole in Office I
for Secretories.

Ms. Regino born 1969 is on independt
oppointed to the KLDC, Boord of Direciors by

Secretory, Ministry of Agriculture on(
Development vide Gozetle Notice No. 4396 of
She holds o Bochelor of Educotion (Arts) frr

University. She hos worked os o Groduote Te

Boys Secondory School ond Mogonjo Secor
served os o Supervisor ond lnvigilotor wiih Ke

Exominotions Council. She is possionote obc
the livelihood of the vulneroble in the society.

Mr. Mbogo holds o Moster's of Science degrr
Technology (University of Northompton-UK, 20(

of Science degree (University of Noirobi, l'
served in governmeni in vorious positions storl
school teocher with the TSC, lecturer oi both
ond University of Noirobi, o reseorcher of Ke

Reseorch ond Development lnstilute (KlRDl). l"

the Director of Leoiher Development, Stote D
Livestock ond olternote Director KLDC to
Secretory, Stote Deportment of Livestock.

Ms. Florence C. John
Member

?

4

Ms. Regino N. Muthomi
Member

(

Mr Joseph N. Mbogo
Rep. PS Slole Deporlmenl
of Llveglock

v t
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Eslher N. Njoroge
Member

Mrs. Eslher Njoroge born 1963 is on independent member
oppointed to the KLDC, Boord of Direciors by the Cobinet
Secretory, Ministry of Agriculture ond Livestock
Development vide Gozelle Notice No. 3895 of 24th Morch
2023. Esther holds o Diplomo in Counselling Psychology from
Amoni Troining & Counselling Institute, Advonced Noiionol
Certificote in Business Administrotion from Kenyo lnstitute of
Monogement, Full Secretoriol Course from Volley
Secretoriol College ond is currenlly pursuing o BA in
Counselling Psychology from Tongozo University College.
She hos worked ot Shelter Afrique os on Executive Assistont,

Unilever Kenyo Ltd, Solomo Freight Compony ond Tru Fruits

(K) Ltd os Executive Assistonl, Administrotive Assislonl ond
Secretory to the Monoging Director respeciively. She olso

served os o Boord Member of Moisho Boro Socco ond
Moisho Boro Ventures.

7

8

M

Mr ler Golhii Reuben
Member

Mr. Peter Gothii born 1964 is on independent member
oppointed to the KLDC, Boord of Directors by the Cobinet
Secretory, Ministry of Agriculture ond Livestock
Development vide Gozette Notice No. 4396 ot 3rd April

2023. Mr. Gothii is o holder of o Diplomo in Meot Technology
ond o Certificote in Animol Heolth. He is currently the
Director ot Westgote Shield Group of Schools ond Kenoshi

lnternotionol Limited.

Mr. Johnson Mwongi born 1973 is currently o Senior Deputy
Director, Mocro ond Fiscol Affoirs Deportment in the
Notionol Treosury. He hos served os on Economist for 26

yeors in vorious Government Ministries including in the Office
of ihe Vice President ond Ministry of plonning ond Nolionol
Development, Ministry of Environment ond Noturol
Resources, Ministry of Educotion, Science ond Technology,
Ministry of Heolth ond the Notionol Treosury. He holds o

Bochelor of Arts (BA) in Economics ond Mosler of Arts (MA)

in Economics degrees from the University of Noirobi.
Mr Jr

Rep

rnson M. Mwongl
S, Nolionol Treosury

lx
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9

Dr. Moses Oude Amoo
Member

Dr. Moses Amoo born 1974 is on independent member
oppointed to the KLDC. Boord of Directors by the Cobinet
Secretory, Ministry of Agriculture ond Livestock
Developmenl vide Gozetle Notice No. 4396 of 3rd April
2023. Dr. Amoo holds o PhD ond Mosters in Leodership
Administrotion ond Monogement from Northweslern
Christion Universily. He holds o Bochelor's Degree in Business

Administrotion (Finonce) from Mokerere University ond o
Diplomo in Business Administrotion (Accounting) from
Momboso Aviotion Troining lnstitute. He served os the
Monoging Director ot Como Freighters Limited ond More
Foworders Limited, Operotions Monoger ol Hobo Agencies
Limited. He olso worked for Kenyo Poslol ond BAT Kenyo.

10.

)r
Mr. Dovid K. Rotich

Member

Mr. Dovid Rotich born l960 is on independent member
oppointed to the KLDC, Boord of Directors by the Cobinet
Secretory, Ministry of Agriculture ond Livestock
Development vide Gozette Notice No. 4396 of 3rd April
2023. He worked ot the City Council of Noirobi in the ronk of
Constoble rising to the ronk of Senior Superintendent ond
once octed os Deputy Direclor Cily lnspectorote.

Mr. Rotich olso served os the Choirmon of the Kenyo-lnter
Municipolities Sports ond Culturol Associotion (KIMSCA), Eost

Africo Locol Authorities Sports ond Culturol Associotion
(EALASCA), Noirobi City Council Cooperotive Society
(NACICO) ond Monyoror Secondory School.

ti.

t
Dr. lssock M. Noor
Secretory/Chief Execulive
Officer

Dr. Noor holds o PhD in Livestock Produciion Systems,
Egerton University, (2013), MSc (Animol Production).
University of Noirobi, (2009), BSc (Animol Heolth) Egerlon
Universiiy (1995) ond o Ceriificole (Animol Heolth) Ahiti-
Nyohururu, (,l990). He hos over 35 yeors of public service
experience with veterinory deportment, teoching,
reseorch, ond odminisirotion.

X
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a!'

Cor
[eg

Co ne Cheruiyol
olion Sec/ Heod of

Corolyne Cheruiyot is on Advocote of the High Court of
Kenyo with over l0 yeors' experience in legol proctice. She
is o Certified Secretory ond o member of the lnstitule of
Certified Secretories - Kenyo. Corolyne holds o Moster of
Lows Degree-University of Noirobi, Postgroduote Diplomo-
Kenyo School of Low ond o Bochelor of Lows Degree from
ihe University of Noirobi.
Corolyne hos o Senior Monogemenl Certificotion from the
Kenyo School of Government ond is olso knowledgeoble on
Doto Prolection Low ond Legol Audit & Complionce. She is

o possionote expert in corporote governonce, orbilrolion,
conveyoncing, litigotion ond commerciol lronsoctions.

xt
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4. MANAGEMENT TEAM

Chief Execullve
Officer/ Secretory

Direclor,
Iechnicol Servlce

Dkector,
Corporole
Service

Dr lssock M. Noor, PhD
T

Dr. Noor holds o PhD in Livestock Production
Systems, Egerton University, (2013), MSc (Animol
Produclion), University of Noirobi, (2009), BSc
(Animol Heolth) Egerton University (1995) ond o
Certificote (Animol Heolth) Ahiti- Nyohururu,
(i eeo).
He hos over 35 yeors of public service
experience with veterinory deportment,
teoching, reseorch, ond odministrotion.

Mr. Ndungu holds o BSc Leother Technology
degree (2004), Certificote in Hides ond Skins
lmprovemenl (1981). He hos ottended courses
in Cluster Monogement, Leother Finishing, ond
Business lncubotion.

2

Mr Chorles M. Ndungu
.)

Mr Mohommednoor A.
lsocko

lsocko hos o weolth of HR professionol
experience sponning over l4 yeors in vorious
orgonisoiions, including County Public Service
Boord of Morsobit os Boord Secretory/Chief
Executive Officer, Kenyo Meot Commission os
Chief Humon Resource & Administrotion
Monoger. lsocko hos held vorious portfolio os
Humon Resources Officer in vorious
orgonizotion.

A Humon Resource Professionol with vosl
experience in monogement, lsocko holds
Mosters in Business Administrotion from the
Universily of Noirobi ond o Bochelor of
Commerce (Humon Resource Monogement)
from the some university. He holds higher
notionol diplomo from lnstitute of Humon
Resource Monogemeni ond Diplomo in Public
Adminislrotion from lnstitule of Golilee (lsroel).

x
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Corporotion
Secretory /Heod
of legol

Monoger,
Copoclly Building

4

Corol e Cheruiyol

Corolyne Cheruiyot is on Advocote of the High
Courl of Kenyo with over l0 yeors' experience
in legol proctice. She is o Certified Secrelory
ond o member of the lnstitule of Certified
Secretories - Kenyo. Corolyne holds o Moster of
Lows Degree-U niversity of Noirobi,
Postgroduote Diplomo- Kenyo School of Low
ond o Bochelor of Lows Degree from the
Universiiy of Noirobi.

Corolyne hos o Senior Monogement
Certificotion from the Kenyo School of
Government ond is olso knowledgeoble on
Doto Protection Low ond Legol Audit &
Complionce. She is o possionole experl in
corporote governonce, orbitrotion,
conveyoncing, litigotion ond commerciol
tro nsoctions.

q

Mr Por

fl
f

TJ
M. Ephontus

\

rl

5l')
4

Poul is o former Employee of Stole Deportmeni
of Livestock os on Acting Director Leother
Development. BSc. (Hons.) Moteriols
Technology (Leother) from the University of
Northompton (UK) ond MSc. Environmentol
Legislotion ond Monogemenl -ongoing

He is o Visionory, Strolegic ond Tronsformolive
Leoder ond on experl in formuloting
Environmentol ond Leother Policies,
Developing Leother Strotegies ond Enocting
Environmentol Legislotions. He is lhe founder &
choirmon of Kenyo Associotion of Leother
Technologisl ond Scientists (KALTS), o
professionol body for Leolher Developmenl
Professiono ls.

x
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a

Monoger, Quolity
Assuronce &

Complionce

Monoger,
Promolions &
Morkeling

Monoger, Humon
Resources &

Adminislrotion

Monoger,
Finonce &

Accounls

Albert holds Moster of Business Administrotion
(Finonce) - Moi University, ond Bochelor of
Business Monogement (Accounting) - Mosinde
Muliro University. He is on ostute professionol

with vost knowledge ond experience in Public
Finonce, Accounting, Auditing & Assuronce. He

is o member of the lnstitule of Certified Public
Accountonts of Kenyo (ICPA- K) ond lnstitute of
lnternol Auditors - Kenyo (llA-K) ond ICS-K.

Dr. Ahmed A. Hosson,
PhD

6 Holds o BSc (Hons) from Northomplon University
U.K. Mosters in Business Adminisirotion (MBA)
Sirotegic Monogemenl option from Kenyo
Methodist University ond Doctor of Philosophy in
Business Administrotion (Strotegic
Monogement option from Jomo Kenyotto
University of Agriculture Technology, Noirobi
Kenyo.
Holds o thirty-five yeors' experience in the
leother industry.

7

Mr John Olieno
Okumu

John holds MSc in Environmentol Plonning &
Monogement - Moseno Universily, BSc in
Moteriol Science (Leother) - University of
Northompton, Certificole in Hides & Skins
lmprovemenl - AHITI Kobefe, KCE certificote
from Mowego Technicol School. A leolher
professionol with over 34 yeors of experience.

8

Mrs Yvonne K.

Nkoiboni

Yvonne is o Humon Resource proctitioner with
over l0 yeors of experience. She hos vost
experience in recruitment. troining, discipline,
employee relotions, performonce
monogemeni ond rewords monogement. She

hos o bochelor's degree in Humon Resource
Monogement ond is o member of the lnstilute
of Humon Resource Monogement.

9

CPA Albert Ariku

xtv
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Prlncipol Supply
Choin
Monogemenl
Officer

Prlncipol Plonning
& Strotegy Offlcer

Prlnclpol,
Communlcolions
& Publlclty Officer

E

1 0

I
Mr rlck Rllhoo Klnoti

Eric is the heod of procurement ond supply
choin monogement function of the Council. He
is seosoned professionol in supply choin
monogement ond governonce in both public
ond privote sector.
He is o finolist Moster of business odministrotion
ond o bochelor of commerce degree
(procurement ond supply choin Monogemenl)
holder, with CPA port ll certificotion. He is o
member of the Kenyo lnstitute of Supplies
Monogement (KISM).

ll
I

IIHe n K. Mulegi

Hellen holds o Moster's Degree in Project
Plonning ond Monogement from the University
of Noirobi.
She is o committed, dedicoted ond result
Oriented Officer with o weolth of experience in
reseqrch, project plonning ond monogemenf,
Monitoring ond evoluotion ond Troining of
troiners.

12

I
Mr.. sack Alio

Mr. lssock is o seosoned Communicotion
Speciolist with more thon twelve yeors of
expertise in the field. He holds o Bochelor's
degree in Communicotion ond Medio, o
Moster's in Journolism ond Moss
Communicotion from Egerton University ond
currently pursuing o PhD in Communicolion ot
Doysior University.k

I
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Kenyo Leolher Develapment Council
Annuol Repoi t Flnqrclql storemenls for the yeot ended 30T June, 2023

5. CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

It is greot pleosure lo present the onnuol report ond finonciol slolements for lhe finonciol
yeor (FY) 202212023. This report is o reflection of the commitment of the newly reconstituted
Boord ond monogement in striving to ochieve impoctful interventions to grow lhe leoiher
industry. The industry is expected to be o priority sector under the monufociuring pillor of
the Government's Bottom-Up Economic Tronsformotion Agendo IBETA) 2022 -2027 ond
Kenyo Vision 2030 Medium Term Plon lV development gools. The leother industry olso
continues to omplify the centrol role of the Kenyo Leother Development Council (KLDC) in
the sector's development ond promotion of the volue choin.

The Boord ond the monogemenl hove conlinued to ensure thol ihe Council dischorges ils

mondote lhrough the reolizotion of the sirolegic objectives set in the droft slrolegic plon FY

2022/2023- 2026/2027. The previous Boord hod opproved the initiol droft strolegic plon.
However, there wos need to review il following new Guidelines issued by lhe Stote
Deportment for Economic Plonning. The strotegic plon FY 2022/2023 - 2026/2027 hos
enhonced objectives with regord to strengthening the Council ond conquering locol ond
inlernolionol morkeis. The focus for the Council hos been to focilitole excellence in the
leolher industry; enhonce leolher sector infrostruclure; promote leother processing ond
product monufocluring; ond promote leother morketing. These objectives ore designed lo
tronsform Kenyo towords becoming o leother monufocluring hub.

The Council hos continued to work in colloborolion with criticol portners locolly ond
internotionolly ond hos olso benefited from the supporl given by lhe porent Ministry of
Agriculture ond Livestock Development, the Noiionol Treosury, olher Government
deportments ond ogencies. In oddition, the Boord hos mointoined o culiure of robust
stokeholder engogements os stipuloted in Chopter Six (6) of the Code of Governonce of
Slole Corporotions, Mwongozo,20l5. These efforls hove been crilicol in the induction of
the newly oppointed direclors, identifying industry chollenges ond focus oreos for the Boord
during their lerm in office.

Core Mondole

ln the finonciol yeor, there wos on increose in the implementotion of criticol octivities,
progroms ond projects with o notoble increose in copocily building of industry ployers,
outreoch progrommes, stokeholder engogement, Boord ond stoff troining.

The oblective of enhoncing the leoiher sector infroslructure wos mel through the continued
developmenl of the Kenyo Leother lndustriol Pork (KLIP). Notobly, the construction of the
Common Effluent Treotment Plont (CETP) hos progressed well os the mochinery instqllotion
is olmost complele. However. the completion hos been curtoiled by the nuonces of joint
implementotion with the Exporl Processing Zones Aulhority (EPZA) ond lock of sufficient
funding from the NotionolTreosury. Construction of the four (4) leother industriol worehouses
which ore expected to provide o "plug ond ploy" incentivised focility for investors is of on
odvonced stoge, but lock of odequote funding is still o chollenge. The enoblers of the
pro.ject such os the Ministry of Roods, Kenyo Power, Tonothi Woter Works Developmenl
Age.slcy :lnd The Ministry of ICT ore ot vorious stoges in ihe implementotion of their

a

xvt



yo Leolher Developmenl Council
A Repod & Flnonclol Stolemenh tot lhe yeot ended 30th June, 2023

{clive componenls. construction of the rood nelwork to occess the pork ond within
$ork hos begun. Tonolhi Woter Works Development Agency hos olso commenced

de lopment of the infrostructure necessory for woter provision. since lhe development of
criticol infrosiructure ond utilities will bolster the competitiveness of the Leother Pork,the

the onogement conlinues to pursue the implemenlotion of oll components, including lcT
infr structure ond security. As the operotionolizotion of the KLIP becomes o reolity, the
Boo fl hos opproved the lnvestor Occupotion Criterio ond the some will be odver.tised os

ios the Council obioins formol ollocotion of the KLIP lond from EpZA.

fespect to the Council's oblective for promotion of leother processing ond product

soo

wit
mo focluring, the Koriokor cMF which is expected to bolster locol footweor ond leolher

res
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Completed, os well os lhe instollotion, tesling, troining ond commissioning of the
hinery. The focility become operotionol in the second quorter of lhe FY 2022/2023 ond
rol Micro, Smoll ond Medium Enterprises (MSMES) hove benefited from the troinings
ed.

hos continued to nurture the Troining ond Production Centre for Shoe lndustry (TPCSI),
, in order to ensure thot it ochieves its strotegic objective of supporting growlh in ihe

nges regording the registered ownership of the focility ond now receives quorterly
s for the finonciol ond sociol impoct porometers of TPCSI, which will inform strotegic

dec bns wilh regord to ihe Centre's future.

lom pleosed to report thot, in the finonciol yeor, the Leother Development Policy which is

ded 1o provide o dedicoted roodmop for the short term ond long-term development
of th seclor wos opproved by the Cobinet in Morch 2023.

Governonce & Humon Resource Copitol

irectors hove benefited from induction through the Stote Corporotions Advisory

G
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leot r sector through oppropriote skills development. The Boord took cognizonce of the
chol
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ittee (SCAC) seminor, stokeholder engogement, site inspections ond benchmorking
qhout the country. This comprehensive induclion hos equipped ihe Boord 1o obly
qrge its oversighl duty, understond the principles of good governonce, the code of
rhonce of stote corporotions (Mwongozo) ond their role ond responsibilities.
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fveness. However, humon resource gops still exisl in vorious deportments ond hence
to be oddressed occordingly. There ore plons, subject to ovoilobility of funds, lo

ochi ve the full stoff estoblishment currently ot one hundred ond lwenty-eight []28).

loteful to the new politicol dispensotion, which hos prioritized the leother sector. This
Sloin the momentum in leother sector development ond promotion of the volue
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Repoi & Finqnclol Slolemenh lot rhe yeot ended 30,, June, 2023

OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Coun
,l,t tf,e nnnrol Reporl ond Finonciol Stotements for Kenyo Leother Developmenl
il (KLDC) for the yeor ended 3OthJune 2023. The Council hos continued io execute
dote of driving the tronsformotion of the leother volue choin in the Counlry from o
oteriol/semi-processed expori-driven sector to o finished leother product
cturing industry. KLDC is therefore o key driver of the Botiom-Up Economic

During ine fV 2022/2023, the Council hos continued to focilitoie o volue driven ond
ble leother industry guided by the estoblishing legol instrumenl ond lhe BETA Plon,

both I

primory focus being the quolity of leolher & leother products monufoctured for
ol ond export morkets.

its mo
row
monu
Tro nsf
devel

ln the
previo
o posr

time b
going

lnd ustri

otion Agendo (BEIAI 2022 -2027 ond Kenyo Vision 2030 Medium Term Plon lV
pment gools under the monufocturing pillor.

nonciol yeor, the Council's finol opproved budget wos Kshs. 271.3 million including
g yeor's bolonces. The octuol expenditure wos Kshs.263.5 million which lronslote to
iVe obsorption rote of 97 per cent, enobling the Council to ochieve o high
entotion rote for its plonned octivities for the finonciol yeor.

To opl ize output omong the stoff, individuol employees sign Performonce Controcting
cusing the Council to be keen on rewording high performonce while ol the some

ilding on lhe volues of the Council. Employee engogement remoins o key priority

build o
Orword os we oim to improve on ihe cullure of our work environment. We oim to
dynomic Council which supports our stroiegy ond growlh ond to ochieve this end,
Uncil continues to invesi in proper ond efficient operotionol sysiems oimed ot
ng performonce ond copturing opportunities. The reolizotion of these dreoms hos
Q Council grow its humon resource bose os well os ocquire on Enlerprise Resource

(ERP) tool to enhonce productivity ond efficiency of internol operotions during the

lnob d lo modernize operotions thot is oimed ol enhoncing provision of common

(rPCSr)

cluring services, the Council completed the insiollolion ond commissioning of
mochinery/equipmenl ot the Troining ond Production Cenlre for Shoe lndustry

Ihiko, ond Koriokor Common Monufocturing Focility (KCMF), Noirobi.

During
o dedi

Ae yeor under review, the Leother Developmenl Policy which is intended lo provide
oted roodmo p for the shorl term ond long term development of the secior wos
d by the Cobinet.

Osed to report o remorkoble progress in the construction, instollolion ond equipping
mmon Effluent Treotment Plont (CETP), joinily implemented by the Council ond

rt Processing Zones Authority (EPZA). by the Controclor ot the Kenyo Leother
Pork (KLIP), Kinonie, Mochokos County.

ln view
induslri

of the foregoing development, the construclion of modern stote-of-the-ort leolher
worehouses meosuring 5,000 squore meters ond 2,500 squore meters for tonneries
her products monufocluring, for'plug ond ploy' ore respectively 75% ond 85%

The overoll certified works done ot KLIP, Kinonie ore ol 84% complete.
ile, other government enoblers (Roods, Power, Woter, ICT ond Security) hove been
to fost-trock their conlribution iowords reolizotion of the pork.
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Kenyo Leolher Developmenl Council
Annuol Repo,, & Flnonclol Srqremenh tor the yaor ended 30k Juna, 2023

The Council's five-yeor Strotegic Plon for the period FY 2022123 - 2026/27 which hos
enhqnced objectives with regord to strengihening the Council ond conquering locol ond
internotionol morkets wos opproved by the previous Boord of Directors. However, the some
is cunently under review to ensure complionce with new Guidelines issued by lhe Stote
Deportment for Economic Plonning.

I thonk the Boorcl of Direclors for iheir leodership ond guidonce throughout the yeor ond
the members of stoff for their commitment towords ochievement of the set torgels. I olso
thonk our stokeholders for their support ond look forword to cordiol working relotionship.

Dr . Noor, PhD
Chlel Execu live Officer
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Kenyo Leother Development Cauncil
rytnudl Repod & Finqnciol Stotements fot the yeot ended 3,th June, 2023

7. STATEMENT OF COUNCIT'S PERFORMANCE AGAINST STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES FOR FY
2022/23

lhe Council's octivities ond projects ore in pursuont of reolizing the four strotegic
Objectives of the new f ive-yeor strotegic plon 2022 - 2027 ond the notionol objective of
Itonsforming the leother industry into on internotionolly competitive regionol leother ond
leother products monufocturing hub through the Bottom up Economic Tronsformolion
,{gendo (BEIA). Eoch strotegic objective oddresses porticulor requirements f or
continuous improvement of performonce of the leother sector of row moteriol
production, leother processing ond product monufocturing. These strotegic objectives
qre:

Slrotegic Objectlves

lle

uslry

Enhonce
Leolher
Seclor

lnfroslruclure

Promole
[eolher

Processlng ond
Producls

Monufoclurlng

Promole
Leolher

Morketlng

Forge
slroleglc

porlnershlp
wllh lnduslry

ond
stokeholders

Strengthen
Orgonlzollon's

Copoclly

ln lhe drive towords the reolizotion of these obiectives. the Council is implementing
vgdous projects ond progroms thot inform the plonning of the onnuol octivilies. The
plfnned octivities for eoch yeor build on the ochievements of the preceding yeor os well
od lessons leorned or ony new dynomic thot comes into ploy in ihe course of the yeor.

Thb currenl projects ond progroms include: -

i) Development of the Kenyo Leolher lndustriol Pork in Kinonie Mochokos County.
ii) Esloblishment of o common Monufocturing Focility (cMF) ot Koriokor Noirobi

County.
iii)i Upgroding of Troining ond Production Centre for Shoe lndustry (TPCSI) Ihiko, Kiombu

County.
ivl Development of notionol leother policy.
v) Hides ond skins quolity improvement progrom.

nd&

lr
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Kenyo Leothet Development Council
Annuol Repoi & Flnonclql Stdlemenh fot lhe yeot ended 30th June, 2023

During lhe Finonciol Yeor 202212023, issues of quolity of hides ond skins were identified os o
mojor chollenge in ihe development of the secior ond ihe Council initioted the
development ond implementotion o notionol progrom for quolity improvement.

Aport from the interventions under the strotegic objectives, other emerging dynomics
offected the performonce of the seclor. During the yeor, the notionol eleclion ond post-

election chollenges ond economic slowdowns hod negotive effects on the sector resulting

in low revenue collections ocross oll quorters ihoi orose from poor consumption of leolher
producls. This reduced the country's moin exports of wetblue/crust leother offecting the
locol row hides ond skins supply systems due to reduced prices.

The Council ochieved its performonce torgets set for the FY 2022/23 period for its four
strotegic pillors os indicoted in the toble below while the torgets for the other two pillors to
be set in the current finonciol yeor 2023/24:

Toble 1.0: Slolemenl of Council Performonce o oinsl slrol ic ob eclives

Pillor 1:

Focilitote
Excellence in
Leother
lndustry

Droft finolized ond
forworded to the
Ministry
Enhonced skills to
improve quolity in
l2 Counties

1 l7 floyers troined

155 producers
sensilized

l2 TOTs sensitized
on quolity

rod uction
80% Complete
mochine ond
equipment
instollotion
o ngoing.

Finolizotion of droft
notionol leother
policy

Development
of o notionol
leother policy

Finol droft
policy

Troining ond
sensitizotion of l0
counties (5 high
livestock & 5 high
slouqhter) identified

Number of
Cou nties
Focilitoted

Number of
floyers
troined

Troin 250 floyers

Sensitize 150 hides
ond skins troders

lmprovement
of hides, skins
ond leother
quolity

Number of
hides ond
skins
producers/
troders
sensitized

Pillor 2:
En ho nce
Leofher Sector
lnfrosiructure

Provide o
modern
Common
Effluent
Treotment
Plont (CETP)

Completion
Construction of o
CETP ond other
reloted works
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Provision of
plug ond ploy
industriol
worehouses

Completion
Conslruction of 4
industriol
worehouses (2 of
2500SM & 2 of
5000sM)

/o

Completion
Completion of
Koriokor worehouse

Operotionolize
Koriokor
Common
Monufocturing
focility

Number of
Mochines
delivered
ond
instolled

Delivery ond
lnstollotion of 65
mochines/
equipment

Number of
mochines
lnstolled

lnstollotion of 33
mochines

Plll

Pr<

t,;e,

Pr(
Pr<

M(

lr 3:
lnote
Iher
Iessing ond
iuct
t ufocturing

c
)l

l
x
X

Upgrode of
Troining ond
Production
Centre for
Shoe Industry
(TPCST) Number of

operotors
iroined

Troining of l5
mochine operotors
conducled

Morket
survey
report

Corryout morket
survey of leother
products

Number of
MSMEs
promoted
through the
websile

Promote l0 MSMEs
product through
KLDC website

En ho nce
occess to
morkets

Number of
MSMEs
occessing
TPCSI focility

Focilitote 25 MSMEs
to occess TPCSI

common
monufocturing
focility

PlI
Prc

Ler

M(

r4;
notion of
lher
keting

Enho nce
footweor ond
leother goods
competitivene
ss

Number of
MSMES
troined on
complionce
to stondords

Troin 50 MSMEs
monufocturing
leother products on
stondords
complionce.

Leql he r Deve lo pment Co unc il
uol Regoi & Floonclol Srorernenrr for lhe ),eot ended 3Uh Jvne, 2023

85% Complete

100% complete

65 mochines/
equipment
delivered ond fully
insiolled ond
o erotors troined.
44 mochines
instolled including
odditionol
donotion from
ALLPI.
23 operotors
hoined

One morkel survey
done

Products of l3
MSEs promoted

27 MSMEs
occessed

56 MSMEs troined
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(enyo Leorher Developmenl Cauncil
Annuol Repoi & Flnqnciol Slatemenlt lot lhe yeot ended 30h June, 2023

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The principol mondote of the Kenyo Leother Developmenl Council (KLDC) is to undertoke
leother sector development ond promotion of the leother volue choin. The Council
dischorges its mondote in occordonce with the provisions of the Kenyo Leother
Development Council (Order) L.N. No. I l4 of 201 l, under the Stote Corporolions Act (Cop
446) of the Lows of Kenyo. The Council's strotegic objectives ore geored lowords driving
the tronstormotion of the leother volue choin in the Country from o row moteriol/semi-
processed export driven sector lo o finished leolher products monufocturing industry.

KLDC is o key driver of the "Botfom Up Economic Tronsformotion Agenda (BETA)" for jobs
creolion under the mqnufocturing pillor of Vision 2030. The roodmop to ochieve success is

embedded in the droft Strotegic Plon for tY 2022/23 - 2026127. The strotegic objectives
oddress the key chollenges focing the leoJher sub-sector ond ore oligned to the Council's
mondote. The design of the Council's next Strotegic Plon for the FY 2022/2023 -FY 2026/2027
is of on odvonced stoge ond is expecled lo be lounched in the current finonciol yeor.

The Council is porented by the Ministry of Agricullure ond Liveslock Development, under
lhe Stote Deportmeni of Livestock Development (SDL). The Boord is the opex orgon ond
wos reconstituted by ihe oppointment of Copt. Mohomed A. Adon os the Choirmon of the
Boord with effect from the Sth April, 2023 ond the oppointmenl of the following seven
independent Directors on the some dote ond one more o monlh before;

t.

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.
vii.

CPA Michoel K. Nyongi
Ms. Florence C. John;
Ms. Regino N. Muthomi
Mrs. Esther N. Njoroge
Mr. Peter Gothii Reuben
Dr. Moses Oude Amoo ond
Mr. Dovid K. Rotich

The Boord underwent exlensive induction conducted by the Stote Corporolions Advisory
Commiilee (SCAC) os well os on industry-bosed induction. This hos equipped ihe Boord
wilh knowledge to understond ond uphold the principles of good corporote governonce
ond dischorge their oversight role os envisoged in the provisions of Section (15) of the Stote
Corporotions Act (Cop 446) ol the Lows of Kenyo ond KLDC's enobling slotute. The section
provides thol the Boord sholl be responsible for the proper monogement of the offoirs of o
slole corporotion ond sholl be occountoble for the moneys; the finonciol business ond the
monogement of the entiiy.

The Boord delegotes its roles to the Council's monogement led by the Chief Executive
Officer who is the occounting officer. He is occountoble to the Notionol Assembly in
occordonce with Seclion (68) of the Public Finonce Monogement (PFM) Acl of 2012, in
ensuring thot the public resources ore used in o woy thol is lowtul ond outhorised; effective
ond efficient; economicol ond ironsnoreni.
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Ken ther Developmenl Council
Report & Fhonclol Slolemenb lot lhe yeot ended 30th June, 2023

Governonce Princlples

it of the corporote objeclive, the Council committed to ihe highest level of good
nce. KLDC sirives to foster o culture thol upholds the Constilution of Kenyo (2010),

ond rewords exemplory performonce within cleor ethicol stondords, corporote
f, upholding respect for oll ond sofeguording nolionol inierest.

6rd dischorges ils role ond functions in complionce with the enobling low, the Stote
rptions Act ond the requirements contoined in Mwongozo (The code of Governonce
le Corporotions) ond oll other opplicoble lows, rules ond regulotions. Mwongozo
€s the roles ond functions of the Boord which should be exercised collectively. The
hd functions include determinotion of the orgonizotion's vision, mission, purpose ond

lues; 1o set ond oversee the overoll strotegy ond opprove polices of the Council;
e the onnuol budget; monitor the orgonizotion's performonce ond ensure
b ility; hire the CEO ond opprove the oppointment of senior monogement stoff while

sustoinobility of the succession plon of the Council ;ond ensure effective
cotion with stokeholders. During the yeor, the Boord conducted oll its quorterlynt

P
I

ciol meetings os required by low, upholding high ethicol stondords ond withoul ony
of interest.

rd governs the Council consistent with the stoted business strotegy indicoted in the
's volues of equity, teom work, merilocrocy, occountobilily ond probity oll

piing to the commilment 1o ironsporency ond high-quolity governonce sysiem.

ftion of lhe Boord of Dkeclors

irperson of KLDC is oppointed by the President of the Republic of Kenyo. The
ol Secretory of the Poreni Ministry ond Notionol Treosury oppoint one olternote eoch

Boord. The Cobinet Secretory (CS) of the Porent Ministry oppoints seven (7)

hdent Boord members ond the CEO is oppointed by the CS upon recommendotion
Eoord.

composilion of lhe Boord
rd of Directors during the reporting yeor consisted of o choirperson; seven (7)

dent members; ond two olternotes- one to the PS of the Porenl Ministry ond the
e CS Notionol Treosury. The lnspectorote of Stote Corporotions (lSC) wos olso

nled in the Boord by Mr. lsooc O. Odek

lb motrix for the Boord consists of individuols who possess exlensive experience in
ldisciplines, which ore opplicoble in the overoll governonce of the Council ond
d the right bolonce of skills ond experience necessory in decision moking.

h
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Kenyo Leofhet Developmenf Council
Annudl Repod & Finonclo, Sr('remenh tor the ye ended 30th June, 2023

Toble 1.'l: Deloils of lhe Boord members during lhe finonciol yeor

The Boord conducts ils business through four commiltees; the Finonce ond Governonce
Committee; the Technicol ond Strotegy Committee; the HR, Risk & Complionce Commitlee;
ond the Audit Committee. A choirperson wos oppointed for eoch commiltee from the
independent members ond eoch director served in ot leost two (2) committees.

lnduclion ond Evoluolion

The Council focilitoted the induction of the new Boord members which wos conducted by
the Stote Corporotions Advisory Committee (SCAC). The Directors fomiliorized themselves
with the Council's operotions including the inspection of the key Council's projects which
ore ot the Kenyo Leother l,rL;t:ustrynl Pork (KLIP),1he KoriokorCommon Mon.:ioctL.;ing Focility

Chairperson 05.04.2023 04.04.2026 l!i Masters NairobiCapt. Mohamed A. Adan

Member2 Kiambu

Uasin Gishu3

CPA. Michael K. Nyangi

Ms. Florence C. John Member

05.04.2023

05.04.2023

04.04.2026

04.04.2026

l,
lsr

Bachelors

Diploma

TBA Masters Kirinyaga4 Mr. Joseph Mbogo AIt. PS SDL 06.07.2020 N/A

0s .04.2023 04.o4.2026 I'r Bachelors Murang'a5 Ms. Regina N. Muthami Member

Member 24.03.2023 23.03.2023 O' Level Nairobi6 Mrs. Esther N. Njoroge

Alt. cs
Treasury

t7 .07 .2020 TBA N/A Masters Nyeri1 Mr. Johnson Mwangi

04.04.2026 Diploma Kiambu8 Mr. Peter Gathii Reuben Member 05.04.2023

Member 05.04.2023 04.04.2026 t'| Doctorate Busia9 Dr. Moses Oude Amoo

Kerichot0 Mr. David K. Rotich Member 05.04.2023 04.04.2026 O' Level

Rep. ISC TBA TBA NiA Masters Kisumutl Mr. Isaac Odek

Manderat2 Dr- Issack M. Noor CEO 0 r .08.202 I 31.0'7 .2026 2d Doctorate

02.01 .2028 Masters Baringot3 Carolyne Cheruiyot Corp. Sec 03 .07 .2023

PREVIOUS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

KituiMr, Francis Munywoki Chairperson 06. t0.202 I 0s.04.2023 Masters

Member 2 r. r0.2019 Expired 2ud Diploma Kiambu2 Ms. Elizabeth Kamau

Member 28.t0.2021 05.04.2023 Masters Kisii3 Mr. Vincent Marube

4 Mrs. Silvana Kaparo Member 28.10.2021 05.o4.2023 tn Masters Samburu

0s.04.2023 Masters Kajiado5 Mrs. Florence Hegarty Member 28.10.2021 ts,

28.10.2021 05.04.2023 ln Masters Kirinyaga6 Mr. Kagiri Kamatu Member

Mr. Joseph Mwago Member 28.t0.2021 0s.04,2023 Masters Catundu7

Member 28.10.202t 05.04.2023 Masters Tana River8 Mr- Jilo Komora

Ms. Njeri Chege Corp. Sec 0r.l r.20t9 Resigned ln Master(En) Kiambu9
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(K F) ond the Troining ond Production Centre for Shoe lndustry (TPCS|). ln oddition, the
BO

VO

undertook stokeholder engogement ond surveyed operotions in key segments of the
choin such os the tonneries, leother footweor ond products monufocturers omongst
so os to identify focus oreos lo be oddressed by the Boord.olh

The nnuol SCAC Boord self-evoluotion for the FY 2022/2023 is yet to be conducted os usuol
int Stote Corporotions Monogement lnformotion System (SCMIS) with the guidonce of

officers.sc

BO Meetlngs

The ewly constituted Boord convened for ils inougurol meeting on lgtn of April, 2023 ot
wh the committees were reconstituted. The Boord in complionce with the directives by

blic Service Commission ond the guidelines by SCAC held Boord committee meetings
full Boord meeling of leost once in every quorter. Speciol meetings were occosionolly

the
on
co ened to oddress urgent motters. The newly constituted Committees held one quorterly
me ings except for the Humqn Resource, Risk ond Complionce Committee which
co ened for two speciol committee meetings.

The egulor meetings ensured thot the Boord wos oble to exercise its oversight role,
rtoke continuous ossessment of performonce of the monogement ond ensureUN

ollg enl with the Council's strotegic objectives. The committees of the Boord considered
the
The
sho

gendo in detoil ond mode recommendotions for odoption in the full Boord meetings.
irectors received sufficient notice os prescribed in Mwongozo ond boord popers were
d in odvonce to enoble them prepore for the meetings.

The revious Boord some of whose term either expired or wos revoked upon oppointment
of
on

boord members on Sth April,2023 held the first three quorterly committee meetings
s quorterfull Boord meetings. ln oddition, they held vorious speciol meetings to discuss
t motters thot needed to be oddressed occordingly.

T 1.2: Boord meelin s held ln lhe FY 2022/2023
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Cornposllion of Boord Commitlees
The Boord hos estoblished four (4) slonding committees thot ossist to dischorge its funciions.
With the newly constiluted Boord, lhe commiiiees' members during lhe yeor were os
shown:

Toble 1.4: Boord Commlllees membership
iNome of lhe Commlllee Members

l. Finonce ond Governonce l. CPA Michoel K. Nyongi - Choirperson
2. Ms. Florence John - Member
3. Ms. Regino N. Muthomi - Member
4. Mr. Johnson Mwongi - Member
5. Mr. Peter G. Reuben - Member
6. Dr. lssock M. Noor - CEO/Secretory
7. Ms. Corolyne Cheruiyot - Corp Secretory

2. Audit l. Mr. Dovid Roiich - Choirperson
2. Dr. Moses Amoo - Member
3. Ms. Esther N. Njoroge- Member
4. Mr. Johnson Mwongi - Member
5. Mr. Don Kochuwoi - Ag. P|A/Secretory

3. Humon Resource ond Risk l. Ms. Esther N. Nloroge - Choirperson
Complionce 2. CpA Michoel K. Nyongi -Member

3. Ms. Regino N. Muthomi -Member
4. Mr. Joseph N. Mbogo - Member
5. Dr lssock M. Noor -CEO/Secretory
6. Ms. Corolyne Cheruiyot -Corp Secrelory

4. Technicol ond Stroiegy l. Dr. Moses Amoo - Choirperson
2. Mr. Dovid Rotich - Member
3. Ms. Florence John - Member
4. Peter G. Reuben - Member
5. Mr. Joseph Mbogo - Member
6. Dr lssock M. Noor - CEO/Secretory
7. Ms. Corolyne Cheruiyot - Corp Secretory
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Fln clol Monogemenl

lhe FY 2022/2023 the Boord's finqnciol monogemenf wos executed by the CEO.

ord on the recommendotion of the Finonce & Governonce Committee, considered,
roted, gove directions, omendmenls ond opproved the quorterly finonciol
ents thot were submitted to Notionol Treosury.

DU

The
deli
stol

incr
inte

Ihe oord ocknowledges the need for skotegic portnerships ond encouroges ihe
po ipotbn of the privote sector in our finonciol motrix. The pressing needs for odditionol
fino ing to complete the ongoing projects ond the cleor need for tronsporency mokes
eng gement with ond reporting to the government ond other stokeholders criticol. The

sing requirement for prudent finonciol monogement hos heightened the level of
st in the Council's opprooch 1o risk monogement ond ossuronce.

The ouncil incuned o totol expenditure of Kshs. 17.7 million in focilitoting the Boord
me ngs ond octivities which includes the stotulory gross monthly honororium of KShs.
87, poid to the choirmon.

To 1.5: Ihe Boord ross ex endilure

cdt, ,l fiomed A Adon 2s0,333 r80,000 82,800 33,605 60,000 606,738

MrM roel Nyongi 220,W 285,000 r3,854 50,000 578,854

MsFk r )nce John r80,000 246.ffi r00,000 50,000 586,600

MsR( ino Mulhomi 220,W 285,000 49,998 60,000 614,998

Drl,t xAmoo r80,000 285,000 100,000 60,000 625,000

MrD id Rolich r80,000 285,000 97,434 60,000 622,434

MrPe lr r Golhii r80,000 246,6N 17,286 60,000 503,886

Ms Es t er Nioroge 200,000 86.800 fi,241 60,000 377,041

MrJo ( ph Mbogo 700,000 284,4N 7,n7 r38.300 50,150 t,180,657

Mrlsc c Odec 240,000 22,m 262,W0

ltMrJO rson Mwongi 480,000 32,000 183,800 78,300 37,840 8l1,910

PNEV|oUS BOAD OF DIRECIORS

Mr Fn I cis Munywoki 783,000 420,W 221,ffi 78,300 I 17,403 39,860 I,660,163

Mrs El rbelh Komou r80,000 r8,000 r98,000

MrVi C enl Morube 500,000 915,000 200,000 78,300 I t7,403 27,290 1,837,993

MrsSIl rno Koporo 440,000 783,400 220,0N i8,300 I 17,403 30,465 1,66r,568

Flolen e Hegorty 380,000 610,200 r20,356 78,300 r 17,403 46,4l'5 1,352,674

Mr Ko ) i Komotu 360,000 r89,600 78.300 I t7,403 33,000 778,303

MrJo rh Mwogo 480,m0 914,400 39,872 78,300 117,03 58,650 1,688,625

e
DIfi E: I ]R HONORARIA SINING DSA MII,EAGE IRAINING MEDICAI. OIHER IOTAI.

EXPENSES

I I

I

III
I

I

!I
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Kenyo Leolher Development Council
Annual Repoi & Flnoncro, SrotemenE ,ot lhe yeot ended 3Uh June, 2023

9. MANAGEMENI DISCUSSIONS AND ANATYSIS

This onnuol report coptures the overoll performonce of the Council bosed on its key
interventions ond performonce indicolors in line with the performonce conirocl. The reporl
highlights the operotionol ond finonciol performonces, chollenges in relotion lo
performonce monogement ond mojor risks conied out during the yeor.

A. The Council's operollonol ond finonciol performonce

The Council continues to deliver on its key mondote of underioking leother sectot
development ond promotion of the leother volue choin. The operotions of the Council
ore bosed on the drofi strotegic plon 2022-2027 ond the performonce controct.
Presented below ore the discussion ond onolysis of Council performqnce for the period
under review:

i) Flnonciol Performonce

The overoll finqnciol performonce of the Council wos more thon optimol compored lo
previous finonciol yeor. There wos significont increose in expenditure due to increose in
operotionolizotion of lhe Council os o result of plocement of the key personnel. The
Comporotive onolysis of revenue ond expenditure in lhe lost two yeors ore os presented
below:

FY 2O2L / 2022 vshs.',000'

IPCSI SERVICE CHARGES
l;59'l

DEVETOPME
100

RECURRENT
r5r.500

Flgure I .l: A grophlcol presentollon showlng lncome lrends over lhe perlod 2021/2022
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FY 2022/2023 KShs. '000 SERVICE

--CHARGES
1,245

r RECURREI\,IT DEVELOPMENT S-ERVICE CHARGES

1.2: A grophlcol presentollon showlng lncome lrends over lhe perlod 2022/20223

Revenue ond Expendllure Anolysis

300

250

200

150

100

50

0

2019/2020
170

145

FY

2O2Ol2027

764

207

E

_€

,n

)z

a REVENUE "Millions"

. EXPENDITURE'.MiIIions,,

FY

2O2tl2022
181

222

FY

202212023

246

263

'1.3: A grophicol presenlotlon showlng revenue ond expendilure trends over lhe period 2019

g the period under review, o revenue of Kshs.246.2 mlllion wos received ond roised
nst on expenditure of Kshs. 263.5 million resulting in on operotionol deficil of Kshs. 17.2

n including for outslonding poyobles.
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ii) Operolionol Performonce
The overoll weighted oggregote performonce score for Council in FY 2022123 wos 88%
which is in the ronge of good. The summory of ochievemenl is os presented in the figure 3
below:

% Achievementin FY 2022/23
100%

97%
89%

80%
I

00%1

III

Core Mondote AGPO

62%

Promolionof Cross-Cutting
locol content

in Procurement

Finonciol
Stewordship &

Discipline

Service
Delivery

Figure 1.4: A grophlcol presenlotion of operolionol performonce lor FY 2022/23

It is importont to note thot there wos on increose in operotionol performonce in the yeor
under review os compored to prior yeor of 57%. This con be ottributed 1o the plocement of
new stoff for service delivery. The performonce could hove been even more were it not for
the disruption coused by the country-wide poor economic performonce, notionol Budget
cuts ond post-election disruptions which resulted in, slow revenue flow, occosionol deloys
of commencement of plonned octivities. minimol movemenl of people ond goods
offecling delivery services of the Council heodquorters, TPCSI, Thiko ond Koriokor KCMF.

B. Council's complionce wilh slolulory requiremenls
During the yeor under review, the Council complied with oll its stotulory obligotions
including complionce to public procurement regulolions, remittonce of P.A.Y.E, NHIF,
NSSF. NITA ond HELB wilhin lhe stipuloted deodlines. KLDC Boord commits to implement
internol control mechonisms in line with ihe Elhics ond Anti-Corruplion Commission Acl
No. 22 of 20,l I ond Leodership ond lntegrity Acl of 2012. The Council does not foresee
ony potentiol for contingent liobilities orising from non-complionce with stotutory
obligotions.

C. Key projecls ond investmenl decisions lhe Council is plonning/implementing
Ihe Council plons lo continue implementing its projecis os per the currenl droft
Strotegic Plon 2023-2027. This finonciol yeor, the Council is undertoking the following
pro.iects:
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leolher Pork

inistry of lnveslment Trode & lndustry, Trode ond Enterprise Development ond the
of Agriculture ond Livestock Development through the Kenyo Leother

lopment Council (KLDC) ond Expori Processing Zones Aulhority (EPZA), is

oping Kenyo's first Leother Pork of Kinonie, Mochokos County, to boost ocol
pro rfction of leother ond leother products.

The rk is situoted on o 500-ocre plot ond will consist of vorious industries ond services
bmote the growth of the leother sector in the country. The ongoing works ore qt
rEni levels of completion os shown below: -diff

+
+

't onslruction of industriol worehouses for tonneries ond leother goods monuf octure-

ncing of the 500-ocre Leother lndustriol Pork complete.
onstruclion of Common Effluent Treotmeni PIonl (l0.SMLD, 2.SMLD ond

eticulotion )-o ngoing ond 80% complete.

ngoing ond 84% complele.

veroll ongoing works is ot 82% complete. Meonwhile, other government Enoblers
s, Power, Woter, ICT ond Security) hove been engoged to fost-trock their

con ution lowords reolizotion of lhe pork.

kor Common Monufocluring Focility
The oriokor Common Monufocturing focility houses over 200 stolls wilh over 6000

preneurs/employees. lt is o mojor producer of leother products (fooiweor ond
er goods). To improve both the quontity ond quolity of lhe leother products, ihe

Co ncil in colloborotion with the Noirobi County Government upgroded the clusler

ugh provision of both production technology ond skills development. Wilh respeci

The
Mini
Dev
dev

leo

rhe Council's objective for promotion of leother processing ond product
focturing, the Koriokor CMF which is expected 1o bolster locol footweor ond

tirer goods competitiveness is now operotionol.

fvlOU between the Council ond Noirobi City County Government is in existence. The

ogement Advisory Commiltee (MAC) for smooth implementotion of the project wos

n ploce. The three stokeholders (i.e the Council, the County Government ond ihe
be bficiories) eoch oppointed three (3) Members to the Commitlee. The focility wos

ped over to the Council ond insiollotion of the mochinery ongoing.

ding of Trolning ond Produclion Cenlre for Shoe lnduslry (TPCSI)

liso troining institute designed tosupport the development of the leothersector
gh skills developmeni ond common monufocturing focility. To ochieve the

dctives, the Centre is well equipped with both humon resource ond mochinery. The

rincil hod previously procured rn.;f[ leother monufocturing equipment ond

9
t1

to
mo
leo



Kenyo Leolhet Developmeol Council
Annvql Repod & Flndncrql storemenls fol lhe yeq ended 30th June, 2023

mochinery to enhonce copocity building ond offer common monufocfuring focilities 1o

MSMEs. The outcome of ihis effori is to creote employmenl ond improve micro-
economic stobility for citizens under the BEIA Agendo. The upgrode is fully funded by the
Government.

iv) Replicotion of Common Monufocluring Model in lhe Counlies
KLDC is mopping other monufocturing clusters with ihe intention of replicoting ihe
Common Monufocturing model in the Counties. Some of the Counties identified for
mopping include Nokuru. Molindi, Eldoret, Kisumu, Meru ond Momboso.

D. Mojor risks focing lhe Council ond miligolion meosures
l) Finonciol risk - insufficient funding is hompering delivery of the set torgets. To mitigote

this, the Council will implement Resource Mobilizotion Slrotegy through oppeols to
Noiionol Treosury ond generole more income internolly.

il) Legol/Complionce Risk - The existing regulotory ond policy fromework. locks sufficient
enforcemenl bocking (KLDC is on o legol notice). To miiigote ihis, the Council hos
developed the Kenyo Leother Development Policy (olreody considered by Cobinet
in Morch, 2023) ond o droft KLDA bill which ore currently ot different stoges of
complelion.

iil) lnformolion Security Risk - The current monuol system is prone to errors, inodvertent
loss of doto ond cyberottock thot would odversely offect our brond identily ond
reputotion. To mitigoie this, The Council implemented ond consequently
commissioned on 27th Jvne, 2023 Enterprise Resources Plonning (ERP) to outomote
ond house the processes ond secure dolo.

iv) Reputolionol Risk - the Council brond identity is criticol ond foilure to prolect this
would result in deteriorolion of our repulotion ond potentiol loss of businesses. To
mitigote this. the Council coniinues to reinforce its volue, policies ond processes with
its stokeholders, business portners ond employees. The Council sholl toke robust oction
where necessory, to protect its trodemorks, brond ond reputotion. The Council sholl
olso be committed to developmenl of communicolion stroiegy ond stokeholder
engogement progrommes.

E. Moleriol orreors in stolulory/finonciol obligolions
During ihe period under review, the Council hos no ony moteriol orreors in stotutory
deductions or ony historicol pending bill.

F. The Council's finonciol probity ond serious governonce issues
The Audii Commiltee of the Boord ond the Auditor Generol regulorly review ihe
Council's internol conlrol systems to ensure occurocy of finonciol reports, efficiency ond
effectiveness of operotions ond complionce to rules ond regulotions. ln the FY 2022-2023,
the Council strictly odhered to the code of ethics especiolly being honest in oll finonciol
moiters including those reloiing to collections ond its funding. The oversighl bodies hove
not reported ony finonciol improbity or ony governonce issues.
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VIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABITTY REPORTING

e Council exists to tronsform lives through the mondote of driving the tronsformotion
the leother volue choin in the Country from o row moteriol/semi-processed export

fiven sector lo o finished leolher producl monufocturing industry. The strotegic
biectives guide ihe Council to deliver on its mondole. Below ore oullines of the
ouncil's policies ond octivities thot promote susloinobilily:

sloinobility slrolegy ond profile
e Council is o stote corporotion estoblished under the Kenyo Leolher Developmenl
I
lir

o
t

ouncil Order, 201 I (Legol Notice No. I l4 of 9rn September, 201 I ) with its functions spelt
t to drive the government's ogendo on the development of leother industry. The

uncil espouses the principles reloling to public finonce, bill of rights. notionol volues
s well os principles of good governqnce, to the extenl thoi they opply 1o Public
i[onciol Monogement (PFM). KLDC ploys o significont role in promoting ond odvoncing
ccountobilily, development, service delivery ond equily through ils ociivities ond

licy recommendotions. The Council wos estoblished to provide on objective ond
dependent fromework for regulotion ond focilitotion of industry growth. To this end, the
ouncil hos monoged to sustoin its operotions using the onnuol Exchequer ollocotions.

urther, it supplemenls the GoK funding with its Internolly generoted income for services

I TPCSI, Thiko ond Koriokor Common Monufocturing Focility (CMF) from lime to time
esides prioriiizing expendiiure on need bosis ond in line wilh its core mondoie.

I over the world, overexploitotion of noturol resources required to ochieve economic
rovrth ond development hos hod negoiive impocts on the environmenl while olso

using these resources to become scorcer ond costlier. Commitment to develop three
orters of Kenyo's semi-orid lond oreo 1o support beef ronching leods to increosed

vestock products. Volue oddition of these producls impocts positively on economic
hd community sociol slotus. ln Kenyo. the meot processing plonts ore on the increose

4 support the meot volue choin. The Council supports the development of hides, skins

nd leoiher volue choin within the country

hvironmenlol Performonce
vironmentol performonce of the Council is guided by the Environmentol
onogement ond Coordinotion Acl, which informed the estoblishment of Notionol
vironmentol Monogement Authority whose mondote is to support lnstitutions on

hvironmenlol motters. The Council os o Stote Corporolion complies with this Act ond
rf pports NEMA in meeting its core mondote. This is seen in the woy the Council disposes
osle os well os discouroge the use of plostic bottles in its offices ond working leother

ocilities.
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KLDC supports ond odvocotes for on enobling environment thot supports
industriolizotion ond jobs creotion in Kenyo. Competitive ond sustoinoble locol
monufocturing colls for odequote, relioble ond offordoble foctors of production. These

ore onchored on its sustoinoble policies to ensure thoi it meets the needs of the cunent
generotion without leopordizing the lives of future generotions. The council's
inlerventions in suppori lo the privote sector by developing infrostruciures specificolly
Common Effluent Treotment Plont ol the Kenyo Leother lndustriol Pork is oimed to
improve environmentol performonce in terms of efficiency in resource utilizotion,
recycling ond reduction of pollulion, wosle & emissions.

c) Employee welfore
The Council hos o Humon Resource Policy ond Procedures Monuol guiding recruilment
ond selection, terms ond condiiions of employment ond retention strotegies. The

monuol provides for offirmoiive oction e.g oge, gender, regionol bolonces, ethnicity
ond persons living with disobilities. The Council promotes gender ond disobility
moinstreoming, ond hondles stoff grievonces in line with the requiremenl of the monuol.
The Council olso odheres to Article 234 ( 1 ) (g,h,i), (2) (b) , of the Constitulion, Section 5 (3

o ond b) of the Employmenl Act 2007 ond Section 36 (c) PSC Act 2017 guiding the hiring
process.

The Council hos o Performonce Monogemenl Policy in ploce which deloils the
opproisol, rewords ond sonctions syslem. The Council olso corries oui o Troining Needs
Assessment every yeor ond recommends stoff for compelency development. The

Council is in complionce wilh Occupolionol Sofety ond Heolth Acl of 2007, OSHA. ln

oddilion, the Council hos o Group Personol Accident for oll employees.

d) Morket ploce proclices
Morketploces' mosl importont volue proposilion is to deliver the quoliiy demonded to
providers ond high-quolity supply to buyers in the most efficient ond effective monner.
The COVID pondemic ond the recent push for digilizotion of oll government services hos

chonged the normol morketing systems ond coused shoppers to flock online. lt's been
on unprecedented opportunity for e-commerce bronds, but it hos nol been without ils
chollenges. One of the biggest ond hordesl to overcome is the growing importonce ol
o bronds' hondling of customers' doto ond privocy.

i. Responsible competilion proclice
Kenyo Leother Development Council procurement function hos on estoblished system

of competitive ond responsible business proctices onchored on lhe Kenyon Constitution
2010, the Public Procurement ond Asset Disposol Act 2015 ond the Public Procurement
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A

t
sset Disposol Regulotions 2020.The Council mointoins o corrupt free, o non-politicol
ompetitive procurement system. Towords this end, the Council:
vertises for procurement opportunities through lhe print medio (MyGov) ond
her publishes the ovoiloble procurement opportunities in the Governments' public

{ocurement informotion portol; tenders.go.ke, its website; www.kldc.qo.ke, E-Citizen

fd noticeboords within the institution. Open lendering is the preferred method of
jor procurement opportunities in the Council.

e Council enforces the requirement on preference ond reservotion schemes for ihe
ticol sectors of the society by offering ot leost 30% of procurement opportunities to
e Youth, Women, Persons Living with Disobilities (PWDs) ond morginolized suppliers

ugh on on open ond competilive process.

e Enforcement of Locol Content (Buy Kenyo Build Kenyo) purchoses ensures thot
I leosl 40% of oll procurement opportunities is ollocoied to locol suppliers. This

omotes competilion for locol goods ond services ond thus the growth of the locol
ustry.

requolificotion ond registrotion of suppliers is done through open odvertisement
ere oll poteniiol suppliers ore given on opportunity to porticipole. The Council

nsures thot the quolified suppliers ore registered in the vorious cotegories of
Uppliers. The list gives exclusive preference to lhe Youth, Women, PWDs ond lhe
orginolized groups for specific procurements to ensure inclusivity ond equity. The

quolificotion list is published on the Council's websile for openness ond public
ormotion.
ensure thot the pricing for goods, works ond services ore within the morket trends,

e Council conducts morket surveys ond further seeks professionol odvice from

fperts depending on the procurement needs.

nslble Supply Choin ond Supplier Relolions
ouncil mointoins o responsible supply choin ond supplier relotions through vorious
entions. These include:

he Council mokes prompl poyment to its suppliers once the goods, services ond
orks hove been certified. There ore no pending invoices from previous controcts.
e Council ot oll times offers conirocis ond LPO(s)/LSO(s) to its suppliers to signify

pntroctuol obligotion belween the two porties. The Council hos of no time
eoched ony of its controcluol obligotions with its suppliers.
e Council ensures thot there is o cordiol relotionship with its suppliers through on

pen customer service line during working hours ond o procurement emoil where
rlrpptiers engoge the Council on procuremenl issues

d

d

I
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Il. Responslble morkellng ond odverlisemenl
Kenyo Leother Development IKLDC) ensures responsible morketing os on opprooch thot
ensures the MSME's ore noi only meeting cusiomers' needs but olso hoving o positive

impoct on them ond the communily they're port of. ln Medium, Smoll ond Micro
Enterprises' (MSMEs') leqther products, the Council mops them lo gei dolo on their
porticulors such os their conloct detoils, the quolity of their products ond their production
volume copobilities. KLDC then connects consumers with the mopped ond opproved
MSMEs by plocing product photos ond contoct detoils in their website.

iv. Producl slewordship
KLDC promotes environmentol monogement slrotegy by engoging ils MSMEs on
product ofter soles slrotegy such os whoever designs, produces, sells, or uses o producl
tokes responsibility for minimizing the product's environmentol impoct throughout oll

stoges of the producls' life cycle, including end of life monogement. The greolest
responsibility lies with whoever hos the most obility to offect the full life cycle
environmentol impocts of the product.

xxxv t
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oyo Leothet Developmenf Council
nuql Repoi e Flnonclol Slolemenk lot the yeot ended 30th June, 2023

PORI OF THE BOARD OF THE COUNCIT

e Boord of the Council submits its onnuol report together with the unoudited finonciol
tements for the yeor ended June 30, 2023, which shows the stote of the council's
otrs.

nclpol octivilies
e principol mondole of the Council is to drive the tronsformotion of the leother volue
oin in the Country from o row moteriol/semi-processed export driven sector lo o
ished leother producl monufocturing induslry. KLDC is therefore o key driver of the BETA
endo under the Monufocturing pillor. The roodmop to this success is embedded on
tegic objectives which specificolly oddress the key chollenges focing it. The stroiegic

lectives ore oligned to the Council's mondote. While the monogement corries out the
y-to-doy octivities of lhe Council, the Boord of Council is responsible for the policy
ection ond evoluotion of ihe octivities through the vorious committees ond Boord
provols.

sulls
results of ihe Council for the yeor ended June 30, 2023 ore set out on poge I

Boqrd of Direclors
Appointmeni of the Boord is in occordonce with Section 4 of The Kenyo Leother

velopmenl Council Order,201'l . The members of the Boord of Council who served
ring the yeor ore shown from poges vii to xi.

plus Remission
Council did not moke ony surplus during the FY 2022/23 ond hence no remittonce to
Consolidoted Fund.

dllors
Auditor Generol is responsible for the stotutory oudit of the Council in occordonce
the Section 1 6(21 ot the Kenyo Leother Development Council Order, 201 I ond Arlicle
of the Constitution of Kenyo ond the Public Audit Act 2015.

Order of lhe Boord of Directors

s
T

t

T

2
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Kenyo Leolhet Development Cauncil
Annsot Repod & Flnonclq, Slolemenls tor the yeot ended 30h June, 2023

7. STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Section Bi of the Public Finonce Monogement Act, 2012 ond Section 13. 14. 15, 1 6, I 7 ond
l8 of The Kenyo Leolher Development Council Order, 201 I , requires the Directors to
prepore finonciol stotements in respect of the Council, which gives o true ond foir view of
the Council ot the end of the finonciol yeor ond the operoting results of the Council for the
yeor ended 30th June, 2023.

The Directors' responsibilities include: -

(i) Mointoining odequoie finonciol monogement orrongements ond ensuring thol these
continue to be effective throughout the reporting period;

(ii) Mointoining proper occounting records, which disclose with reosonoble occurocy ot
ony lime the finonciol position of the Council;

(iii) Designing, implementing ond mointoining internol controls relevont to lhe preporotion
ond foir presentotion of the finonciol stolemenis, ond ensuring thot they ore free from
moteriol misstotements, whether due 1o enor or froud;

(iv) Sofeguording the ossels of the Council;
(v) Selecting ond opplying oppropriote occounling policies; ond
(vi) Moking occounling estimotes thot ore reosonoble in the circumstonces.

The Directors occepts responsibility for the Council's finonciol slotements, which hove been
prepored using oppropriote occouniing policies supported by reosonoble ond prudent
judgements ond estimotes, in conformily with Internotionol Public-Sector Accounting
Stondords (IPSAS), ond in the monner required by the Public Finonce Monogement (PFM)

Ac|,2012 ond the Stote Corporotions Act. The Directors ore of the opinion thot lhe Council's
finonciol stotemenfs give o true ond foir view of the slote of its tronsoctions during the
finonciol yeor ended June 30, 2023, ond of the finonciol position os ot lhot dote. The Direclors
furiher confirm the completeness of the occounting records mointoined, which hove been
relied upon in the preporolion of the finonciol slotemenls os well os the odequocy of the
syslems of internol finonciol conlrol.

Nothing hos come to the ottention of the Directors to indicote thot the Council will not remoin
o going concern for ot leost the next twelve months from the dote of lhis slolement.

Approvol of lhe Finonciol Slolemenls
The Council's finonciol stotemenls were opproved by the Boord on 2'L 6/ LcrL ond
signed on its beholf by:

\ lAk

Dr 3(Ic k M. Noor, PhD o Mohomed M. Adon
Chief Execulive Officer

xl

Choirmon of lhe Boord
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KENYA LEATHER DEVELOPMENT
OUNCIL FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

REAMBLE
I

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulataons that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines, and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient, and effective operations of the
entity.

unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
ant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
rnance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
under review.

lev

al

e three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
ponsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
blic Finance Management Act,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General

PORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

alified Opinion

ave audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Leather Development
uncil set out on pages 1 to 31, which comprise of the statement of financial position

ofthe Auclitor-Generol on Kerya Leather Detelopnent Council/or lhe year ended 30 June. 2023
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for the year ended 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement
of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget
and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229
of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 20'15. I have obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial statements of Kenya Leather Development Council for the year
ended 30 June,2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual)
and comply with the Kenya Leather Development Council Order, 2011 and the Public
Financial Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Property, Plant and Equipment

1.1 Lack of Land Ownership Documents

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant, and equipment balance of
Kshs.1 ,984,540 ,717 and as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements. However,
and as previously reported, the balance includes land valued at Kshs.44,000,000 where
the Training and Production Centre for Shoe lndustry OPCSI) is in Thika Town, which
was acquired by the Council from Kenya Research and Development lnstitute (KlRDl).
Review of the handing over report indicated that TPCSI campus was located on a 0. 1 096-
hectare (O.271 acre) plot of land, as per the Trustee Deed made on 25 February,1994
and certificate of title issued on 25 April,1996. However, the ownership documents had
not been transferred to the Council as at 30 June, 2023.

1.2 Fully Depreciated Assets

Note 19 to the financial statement on property, plant and machinery reflects nil netbook
value in respect to plant and machinery. However, the plant and machinery are still in use
and generate economic value for the Council but the same has not been revalued.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of Property plant and equipment
balance of Kshs.1,984,540,717 could not be confirmed.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significane,e in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Leather Development Council for the year ended 30 June, 2023
2
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RqPoRr oN
RqsouRcES

Co]nctusion

LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC

As fequired by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
pe rmed, except for the matter described in the basis for conclusion on lawfulness and
e ctiveness in use of public resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else
ha come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
ap lied laMully and in an effective way.

Ba ls for Conclusion

Co truction of Warehouse

Th Council Management entered into a contract for construction of two industrial
wa ehouses for tanneries of 5,000 sqm each at a contract sum of Kshs.694,931 ,420 on
11 arch,2021 for a contract period of one year (52 weeks). Physical verification of the
sitq in the month of December, 2023 revealed that the works were not complete over two
years later and no evidence of extension of project period was provided for audit.

ln Circumstances, delay in completion of the two industrial warehouses may result to cost
ovqruns and the intended objective ofthe project may not be achieved.

audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

ply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
ut whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
ncial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that

rn them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to rovide a basis for my conclusion

R ORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
GOVERNANCEAN

Th

n
a
fi
s

Co clusion

required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
cedures performed, except for the matter described in the basis for conclusion on
rctiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance section of my report,
Infirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that internal
rtrols, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

As
pro
effr
lcc
cor

B

Ba ls for Conclusion

rd Mombers Appointment

Re ibw of the board of the Council records revealed that the board members were
ap einted through gazette notices numbers 3898 daled 24 March,2022, No. 4390 dated
3 pril,2023 and No. 4396 dated 24 May,2023 lor a term of five years. However, the

Rep

I

ofthe Auditor-Cenerol on Kenya Leather Development ('ouncilfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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board members are yet to be issued with appointment letters. The board members may
therefore not clearly understand their terms of reference as well as roles and
responsibilities. lt was also not possible to establish formal acceptance of the appointment
of the individual members.

Further, the term of all the board members lapses at almost the same time which may
jeopardize the governance ofthe Council should the appointment ofthe next board delay
and institutional memory may also not be maintained in the governance structure of the
Council.

ln the circumstances, there is possible governance problems due to poor or lack of
perpetual succession planning ofthose entrusted with governance.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. lbelieve that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Council's ability to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Council or to cease its operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Council's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the Management monitors
compliance with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective
processes and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation

Report o/ the Auditor-General on Kenyo Leather Development Council for the year ended 30 June, 202 3
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]to overall governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and
leffectiveness of the control environment.
I

Auditor-General's Resoonsibilities for the Audit
I

I

lThe audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
btatements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
ilnd to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
pf Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with

Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but

{s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
A material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
(lr error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

ieasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis

Qf these financial statements.

addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
erformed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
nancial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in

mpliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
n effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
nd submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot lhe Constitution.

urther, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
mpliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in

rdance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
lie
rl"

audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ol the Constitution. My consideration of
internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that

ight be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in

ich the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
uce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by enor or fraud in
ounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
ur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of

rforming their assigned functions.

cause of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
sstatements and instances of non compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
ectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
dequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
licies and procedures may deteriorate

part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
gement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

d

I

I

of the Auditor-Generol on Kenya Leather Derelopment Councilfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council's
ability to sustain its services. lf lconclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Council to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

a Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Council to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA a BS
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

15 February,2024

a

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Leather Development Council for the year ended 30 June, 202 3
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Kenyo
nuql

Developmenl Council
Hnorrciq, srotemenfi lot lhe yeot ended 30h Jvne. 2023

.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAT PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
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STAIEMENT OF FINANCIAI. POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2023
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Kenyo Leolher Developmenl Councit
Aonuql Repod e Flnonclol StolemenE tot the yeor edded 3Oh June. 2023

l I.STAIEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

I a

Revenue

Reserye

Copilol

Reserve

Revoluolion

Reserve
I

As ol30 June 2021

SurpluV(deficit) for the period

Ironsfers to Revoluotion reserves

Tronsfer of depreciolion on revoluotion

Copitolgronts received during the yeor

As ol30 June 2022

SurpluV(deficit) for the period

Tronsfers to Revoluotion reserves

Tronsfer of depreclolion on revoluolion

Copitolgronts received during the yeor

As ol30 June 2023

173,971,896 1,979,490,664 4g,ggl,gl6' 2,102,344,376

60,269,s82 60,269,s82

2U,241,479 l,g7g,4?0,664 4g,ggl,g16'. 2,162,613,g5g

44,252,770 - 44,252,770

9,5/5,000 9,5i5,000

278,300,049 1,879,490,664 58,456,816 2,216,441,728

Nole:

i) Revenue Reserye
This represenls the net worth of the Council for the period ended 30ih Jvne,2O23ond forms
the retoined eornings.

ii) Copitol Reserve
This represents the net worth of the Council for the period ended 30rh June, 2023 ond forms
the Copitol Reserve.

iii) Revoluolion Reserve
This represents the net worth of the council for the period ended 30rn June. 2oz3 ond
forms the revoluotion goin on ossets during the yeor.
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Cctlh Flows ftom operoling Aclivilies

Receipt

2022-2023
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2021-2022

Kshs

Cosh Flows from lnvesling Aclivilies

Cosh llows from finoncing oclivilies

Nel lr <:reose/(Decreose) in Cosh ond Cosh Equivolenh (6.559,759) (507,?46,122)

Le olhet D ev e lo p me nt C a u n ci I
ReDod & Flnooclol Slolementl lot lhe yeot ended 3Oh June. 2023

12 ATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
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The fi nciol stotements set out on poge i lo 5 were signed beholf of the Boord of
Direct

-1N"
Dr. M. Noor, PhD CPA Albert Ariku C

Monoger, Finonce & Accounls
ICPAK No.5280

homed A.o
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Kenyo Leother Developmenl Council
Annuol Repol, e Flnonclol slatements lot the yeot ended 30th June, 2023

I3. STAIEMENI OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30
JUNE 2023

Explonolion of moteriol vorionce

o) Recurrenl Copilolion -The odlustment is os o resuli of governmenl supplemenlory budget
cuts in the 3d Quorter ond hence corry-over of some octivities to the finonciol yeor under
review.

b) Developmenl Copilolion - The odjustment is os o result of government supplementory
budget cuts in the 3,0 Quorter ond bolonce brought forword from previous yeor for the
ongoing projecl works.

c) Other incomes- The under-collection is unfovouroble due io poor economic
performonce leoding lo low uploke of services.

d) Koriokor Cluster Project- The vorionce is fovourobie due to deloy in operotionolizotion of
lhe focility qs o result of ongoing stoli.,tion of mochineries by the Controctor.

182,470,000

2022 2g22 20n

I (o)Recunent Copitolion

20n-2023

r86,780,000

2m2-2m3

(4,3r0,000)

20n-2v23

r82,470,000

r00% tb)Development Copitolion 250,000,000 ( r8/,s00,000) 62,500,000 62,500,000

r.720,000 1.241,687 (17s,3r3) 72% (c)0ther lncc.ne 1,720,000

24,637 9W 24,637.9NGronls Eolonces from Previous Yeor FY 2021/22 24,637,9N

(167,t72,100) 271327,9N 270t52J87 (4751r3) r0MIohllncome fi8.5m,0m

l]6.783,756 (8,800,0001 r07,983,756 r07,19r,886 79),870 99%
I I

Employee Cosls

Boord Expenses 10,201,000 7,640,578 17,844,578 15,955,474 1,889,104 89%

1,382,38r 97%llse of Goods & Services 52,721.211 2,192,243 54,9r3,487 53,531.106

( r,500,000) 6,000,000 5,707,970 T2,030 95%0peroling Expenses Reloling 1o Core Mondote /,s00,000

1,29 t ,000 r.29 r,000 954,908 336,092 71%Repoirs ond Moinlenonce

188^500,000 467,119 188,032,82r t83J4t,311 L6itAn |V,Sub-Totol

Prqecl A dministrotive Expenses r9.500,000 7,540,834 27,040,831 26,9fi,969 8t,865
I

r00%

(d)Ko okor Cluster Prgect 6,000,000 12.060.000) 3.940,000 1,r06,537 2,833,463

7,000,000 {3,650,000) 3,350,000 3,205,977 144,023 96%Revitilzolion ofTPCSl

2tl,500,0m {r68,s35,755) 18,964,245 18,930,285 33,960 t00%Developmenl of Kenyo Leother Pork

Sub.Tolol 250,000.000 166,7U,121 83re5,07t 80101,768 3.093,3r I 96%

,zfrIotolBFFdnwe 138,500.000 06Z172,roo) 27tAUtfi ,63fl3,ll2 t$uu'

suplurpefrcll) lo. the pslod T lat 475 .8260,101

OiginolbudgeAdjutmenh finolbudget Acfuolon Pedotmonce AbsorplionNotesto

comporoble diflerence Rote (%) motedol

bois vorionces

Reverue K$s K$s K$i ($s K*r!

III
rI

necurenl fipendifure
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Kenyo et Developmenl Council
ADnud & fbanclol Stolementl lot'he yeqr ended 30h June, 2023

14. N IO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

KLD

RAI.INFORMATION
is estoblished by ond derives iis outhority ond occountobility from Stoie

Co orotions Act (CAP 446, Legol Notice No.ll4 of 9tn September 20ll). The entily is

wh owned by the Government of Kenyo ond domiciled in Kenyo. The entity's
pn ipol mondote o is lo drive the tronsformotion of the leother volue choin in the
Co try from o row moteriol/semi-processed export driven sector to o finished leother
pro ct monufocturing indusiry

2. Sr MENT OF COMPIIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
Th ouncil's finonciol stotements hove been prepored bosed on historicol cost, unless
st olherwise. The preporolion of finonciol stotements is in conformity with
lnl otionol Public-Sector Accounting Stondords (IPSAS) ihot ollows the use of eslimotes
on ossumptions. The oreos involving o higher degree of judgemenl or complexity or

e ossumpiions ond estimotes ore significont to the finonciol stotements, ore
dis ed under note 5 of these finonciol siotements. The finonciol stotements ore
pr nted in Kenyo shillings, which is the functionol ond reporting cunency of lhe

cil. The occounting policies hove been consistently opplied to oll the yeors
nted. The cosh flow stotement is prepored using lhe direct method. The finonciol

Co
pr
sto ments ore prepored on occruol bosis in occordonce with IPSAS ond PFM Act

3.A PTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

New
ende

d omended stondords ond interpretotions in issue but not yet effective in the yeor
0 June 2023.

IPSA 3

The stondord sets out the principles for the recognition, meosurement,
presentotion, ond disclosure of leoses. The objective is to ensure thot
lessees ond lessors provide relevont informotion in o monner thot
foithfully represents those tronsoctions. This informotion gives o bosis for
users of finonciol siotements to ossess the effect thot leoses hove on the
finonciol position, finonciol performonce ond coshflows of on Entity.

The new stondord requires entilies 1o recognise, meosure ond preseni
informotion on right of use ossets ond leose liobilities.

Appllcoble lsl Jonuory 2025

Curr
Held

IPS 44: Non-
t Assets

for Sole

Applicoble lst Jonuory 2025

The Stondord requires,

6



Kenyo Leothet Developmenl Council
An Jol Lepo e Flnonclol Slotemenl6 tot tho yeot ended 30k June, 2023

iii. Eorly odopllon of slondords
The Council did not odopt ony new or omended stondord in the yeor 2022123

ond
Discontin ued
Operotions

Assets thot meet the criterio to be clossified os held for sole to be
meosured ol lhe lower of corrying omount ond foir volue less costs lo
sell ond the depreciotion of such ossets to ceose ond:

Assets thot meet ihe criterio to be clossified os held for sole to be
presented seporotely in the stotemenl of finonciol position ond the
results of discontinued operotions to be presented seporotely in the
stotement of finqnciol performonce.

7
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Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES

enue Recognition

e from Non-Exchonge Tronsoclions

from olher governmenl enlilies
s from non-exchonge tronsoctions with other government enlities ore meosured ot

ond recognized on obtoining control of the osset (cosh, goods, services ond
f the lronsfer is free from conditions ond it is proboble thot the economic benefits
potentiol reloted to the osset will flow to the Council ond con be meosured

)i

frcil recognizes revenues from exchequer ollocotions when the monies ore received
]osset recognition criterio ore met. To the exlent thot there is o reloted condition
! tf,ot would give rise to o liobility to repoy the omount, deferred income is

d insteod of revenue. Other non-exchonge revenues ore recognized when it is

f thol the future economic benefits or service potentiol ossocioled with the osset

fo 
the Council ond the foir volue of lhe osset con be meosured reliobly.

cil's policy is io recognize the development fund used for project implementotion
tement of finonciol performonce ond the surplus to the sloiement of chonges in

ls under revenue reserve ond subsequently to stolement of finonciol position.

dministrotive expenses ore fully copitolized ond recognized fo the stotemenl of
posilion.

{rue ftom Exchonge Tronsoclions

g of Services
ncil recognises revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stoge of
on when the outcome of the tronsoction con be estimoted reliobly. The stoge of
on is meosured by reference to lobour hours incurred to dote os o percenioge of

oted lobour hours.

e controct outcome connot be meosured reliobly, revenue is recognised only to
t thot lhe expense incurred ore recoveroble. The Council recognizes the revenue

dering of services os on internolly generoled income in stotement of finonciol

l.,p

tnce.
ilncome

come is occrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

d future cosh receipts through the expected life of the finonciol osset to thoi osset's

t-. h

8



Kenyo Leolher Developmenl Council
Annuol Repoi & Finoncrol Srolemenh tor the yeot ended 30th June. 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SIATEMENTS (Continued)

net corrying omounl. The method opplies this yield to the principol oulstonding to deiermine
interest income eoch period. Council sholl recognise ony inlerest eorned on occruol bqsis

in the stotement of finonciol performonce ond cosh flow stotement.

b) Budget informolion

The originol budget for FY 2022-2023 wos recommended by Nolionol Treosury on 30th June,
2022 ond opproved by ihe Boord of Directors on 8rh July, 2022ond subsequently by the stote
Deportment of Livesiock. Consequenl revisions or odditionol oppropriotions were mode to
the opproved budget in occordonce with specific opprovols from the oppropriote
outhorities. The oddilionol opproprioiions ore odded to the originol budget by the entity
upon receiving the respective opprovols in order lo conclude ihe finol budget.

The Council's budget is prepored on the occruol bosis, thot is, oll plonned cosls ond income
ore presenied in o single stotement to determine the needs of the Council. As o result of lhe
odoption of the occruol bosis for budgeting purposes, there qre no bosis, timing or
differences thot would require reconciliotion between the ocluol comporoble omounts
ond the omounls presenled os o seporote odditionol finonciol stoiement in ihe stotemenl
of comporison of budget ond octuol omounts.

r) Toxes

Corporolion lox

The Council is exempted from the poyment of corporotion tox os stipuloled in section 2.l9
(3) of the PFM Act regulotion 2015. However. the Council complies with oll other stotutory
obligotions like the PAYE ond withholding toxes.

Soles lox

Expenses ond ossels ore recognized nel of the omount of soles tox, except:

i) When the soles tox incurred on o purchose of ossets or services is not recoveroble from the
toxotion outhority. in which cose, the soles tox is recognized os port of the cost of
ocquisilion of the ossel or os port of lhe expense item, os opplicoble

ii) When receivobles ond poyobles ore stoied with the omount of soles tox included. The net
omount of soles tox recoveroble from, or poyoble to, the toxotion outhority is included os

port of receivobles or poyobles in the slolemenl of finonciol position. Council recognises
expenses ond ossets of gross volue.

I



N

b)t
nve
om
the t
to-d

lnve
volu
meo

lnve
the i

ors
proc
peno
isoc

c) Pr

All Pr

rmpo
ocqu
to be
usefu

Li

o

o
is

Co

K
I

*o Leolhet Developmenl Council
lql Repod & Flnoncldl Stqtemerr, tor lhe yeot ended 3Oh June, 2023

I

IO THE FINANCIAt STATEMENTS (Continued)

estment property
ent properties ore meosured initiolly of cost, including ironsoction costs. The conying

nl includes the replocement cost of componenls of on existing inveslmenl property ot
e thot cost is incurred if the recognition criterio ore met ond excludes the costs of doy-
mointenonce of on investment property.

ent property ocquired through o non-exchonge lronsoclion is meosured of iis foir
t the dote of ocquisition. Subsequent to initiol recognition, investment properlies ore

red using the cosi model ond ore deprecioted over o 30-yeor period.
t
(nent oro
Vestment

perties ore derecognized either when they hove been disposed of or when
properly is permonently withdrown from use ond no future economic benefit

ice potentiol is expected from its disposol. The difference between the net disposol
ds ond the corrying omouni of the osset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the
of de-recognition. Tronsfers ore mqde lo or from investment property only when there
nge rn use.

fedy, Plont ond Equipment

erty, Plont ond Equipment ore stoted ot cost less occumuloted depreciotion ond
ent losses. Cost includes expenditure thot is directly ond indirectly ottributoble to the

tion of the items. When significont ports of Property, Plont ond Equipment ore required
ploced of intervols, the Council recognizes such ports os individuol ossels with specific

ves ond depreciotes them occordingly.

se, when o mojor inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the corrying omount
ft Plont ond Equipment os o replocement if the recognition criterio ore sotisfied. All

th repoir ond mointenonce cosls ore recognized in surplus or deficil os incurred. Where

n et is ocquired in q non-exchonge tronsoction for nil or nominol considerotion ihe osset

lly meosured oi its foir volue.

uncil odopts o stroight-line depreciotion policy os follows;

tn

The

Mot Vehicles aEoT
-z.J /o

30%
12.5%
333%
ao7

uters
Furni re, Fittings ond Equipment
Plon nd Mochinery

Free
prog

old lond ond Copitol work in progress ore not deprecioted. Depreciotion of work in
ss sholl commences when the ossets ore reody for their intended use

t0

Build s



Kenya Leolher Developmenl Council
Annuol Repod e Flnonclol Stotemenlr lor lhe yeot ended 3gh June, 2023

NOTES IO IHE FINANCIAt SIATEMENTS (Continued)

d) Leoses

Finonce leoses

Finonce leoses ore leoses thot tronsfer substontiolly oll the risks ond benefits incidentol lo
ownership of the leosed item lo the Council. Assets held under o finonce leose ore
copilolized ol the commencement of the leose ol the foir volue of the leosed property or,
if lower, of ihe preseni volue of the future minimum leose poyments. The Council olso
recognizes the ossocioted leose liobility ot the inception of lhe leose. The liobility recognized
is meosured os the presenl volue of ihe future minimum leose poyments of initiol
recog nition.

Subsequent io initiol recognilion, leose poyments ore opportioned between finonce
chorges ond reduction of the leose liobility to ochieve o constont rote of inieresi on ihe
remoining bolonce of the liobility. Finonce chorges ore recognized os finonce costs in
surplus or deficit.

An osset held under o finonce leose is deprecioted over the useful life of the ossel. However,
if there is no reosonoble cerloinly thot the Council will obtoin ownership of the ossel by the
end of the leose term, the osset is deprecioied over the shorter of the estimoted useful life
of the osset ond the leose term.

Operoling leose

Operoting leoses ore leoses thot do not lronsfer substontiolly oll the risks ond benefits
incidentol to ownership of the leosed item lo the Entity. Operoting leose poyments ore
recognized os on operoting expense in surplus or deficit on o stroight-line bosis over the
leose term.
The Council hos o six (5) yeors leoses with CPA Centre whereby we poy rent on quorterly
bosis. The rights of ownership hove not been conveyed to the Kenyo Leother Development
Council.

e) lnlongible ossels

lntongible ossels ocquired seporotely ore initiolly recognized ol cosi. The cost of iniongible
ossets ocquired in o non-exchonge tronsoction is their foir volue of the dole of the
exchonge. Following initiol recognition, intongible ossets ore corried of cosl less ony
occumuloted omortizotion ond occumuloted impoirment losses. lnternolly generoied
intongible ossets, excluding copitolized development costs, ore not copitolized ond
expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.
The useful life of the intongible ossets is finite ond inlongible ossets ore omortized ol 25% per
onnum on slroight-line bosis. The iniongible ossets recognized in the Councils books relote
to softwore's ond brondings.

ll
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rlg initiol recognition of on osset, the osset is corried of cost less ony occumuloted
omorl tion ond occumuloted impoirmenl losses. Amortizotion of lhe ossel begins when
devel pment is complele ond the ossel is ovoiloble for use. lt is omortized over lhe period

dcted future benefit. During the period of development. the osset is tested for
rmpor ent onnuolly with ony impoirment losses recognized immedioiely in surplus or deficit.
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Kenyo I Developmenl Council
Annuol d Fhonclol Stolemenls lot lhe yeot ended 3Oh June,202j

NOTES THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
h ond Developmenl costs

i.rncil expenses reseorch costs os incurred. Development costs on on individuol
lre recognized os intongible ossets when the Council con demonstrote:
Itechnicol feosibility of completing the osset so thot the osset will be ovoiloble for
ior sole
tention to complete ond its obility to use or sell the osset
the osset will generote future economic benefils or service potenliol

ovoilobility of resources to complete the osset
obility to meosure reliobly the expenditure during development

ciol instruments

Ciol ossels

{cognition ond meosuremenl
ibl ossets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Finonciol Instruments: Recognition ond
lemenl ore clossified os finonciol osseis of foir volue through surplus or deficit, loons

ceivobles, heldJo-moturily investments or ovoiloble-for-sole finonciol ossets, os
griote. The Council determines the clossificotion of its finonciol ossets ot initiol

ition.

I

$nd receivobles
ond receivobles ore non-derivotive finonciol ossets with fixed or determinoble
nts thot ore not quoled in on octive morket. After initiol meosurement, such finonciol

ore subsequently meosured of omortized cost using the effective interest method,
oirment. Amortized cost is colculoted by toking into occount ony discount or

m on ocquisition ond fees or costs thot ore on integrol port of ihe effective interesl

gsses orising from impoirment ore recognized in the surplus or deficii.

-molurity
rivotive finonciol ossets wilh fixed or determinoble poyments ond fixed moturities ore
d os held to moturily when the Council hos the positive intention ond obility to hold
oiurity. After initiol meosurement, heldio-moturity investments ore meosured ot

i[ed cost using the effective interest method, less impoirment. Amortized cost is

lbted by toking into occount ony discount or premium on ocquisition ond fees or cosis

1e on integrol port of the effective interest rote. The losses orising from impoirment ore

irized in surplus or deficil.

,1
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Kenyo Leolher Developmenl Council
Ann/'J{,l R.eporl & Flnqnclo, Stqtemenh ,or the yeot ended 3gh June, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS (Continued)

lmpoirmenl of finonciol ossels
The Council ossesses of eoch reporting dote whether there is objective evidence thol o
finonciol osset of lhe Council is impoired. A finonciol osset of the Council is deemed to be
impoired if, ond only if, there is objective evidence of impoirmenl os o result of one or more
events thot hos occurred ofter the initiol recognition of the osset (on incurred 'loss event')
ond thot loss event hos on impoct on the eslimoted future cosh flows of ihe finonciol ossel

or the Council of finonciol ossets thot con be reliobly estimoted. Evidence of impoirmenl
moy include the following indicotors:
i) The debtors of the Council ore experiencing significont finonciol difficulty
ii) Defoull or delinquency in inlerest or principol poyments
iii) The probobility thot deblors will enier bonkruplcy or other finonciol reorgonizotion
iv) Observoble doto indicotes o meosuroble decreose in estimoted fulure cosh flows

(e.9., chonges in orreors or economic conditions thot correlote with defoults)

b) Finonciol liobilities
lniliol recognilion ond meosurement
Finonciol liobilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 ore clossified os finonciol liobililies ol foir volue
through surplus or deficit or loons ond bonowings, os oppropriote. The Council determines
the clossificotion of its finonciol liobilities ot initiol recognition. All finonciol liobilities ore
recognized iniliolly of foir volue ond, in the cose of loons ond borrowings, plus directly
ottributoble tronsoction costs.

Loons ond borrowing
Afier initiol recognition, interest beoring loons ond borrowings ore subsequenlly meosured
of omortized cost using the effeciive interest method. Goins ond losses ore recognized in
surplus or deficit when the liobilities ore derecognized os well os through the effective
interesi method omortizotion process. Amorlized cost is colculoted by considering ony
discount or premium on ocquisition qnd fees or costs thot ore on integrol port of ihe
effective interest rote. The intongible ossets ore omortized ot 25% of the initiol cost.

h) lnvenlories
Invenlory is meosured of cost upon initiol recognition. To the extent lhot inventory wos
received through non-exchonge tronsociions (for no cost or for o nominol cost), the cosl
of lhe inventory is its foir volue ol ihe dote of ocquisition.
Cosls incurred in bringing eoch product to its present locotion ond conditions ore
occounted for, os follows:

i) Row moteriols: purchose cost using the weighted overoge cost method
ii) Finished goods ond work in progress: cost of direct moteriols ond lobor ond o

. n! proportion of monufocturing overheods bosed on the normol operoting copocity,
out excluding borrowing costs.

t3
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Keoyo het Developmenl Cauncil
Annodl potl t Flnonciol Slolemenh lot lhe yeot ended 3Un June, 2023

NOTE to rxe FlNANctAt STATEMENTs (Continued)

itiol recognition, inventory is meosured ot the lower of cost ond net reolizoble volue.
r, to the extent thot o closs of inventory is distributed or deployed oi no chorge or
minol chorge, thot closs of inventory is meosured of the lower of cost ond currenf
ment cost. Net reolizoble volue is the estimoted selling price in the ordinory course
otions, less the estimoted cosls of completion ond the estimoled cosls necessory to

moke he sole, exchonge, or distribution.

lnven I s o(e ( Coo n 7ed o s n exp n s h g n dep ov d o I U tz on or Con sU m on n

After i

Howe

the or ory

Provisi

osore
benefi
con b
provtsr

expen
of ony

f t t tp
coU rs o er o n s opf t Ch o tt nC

rs reco nized os o seporote osset only when the reimbursement is virtuolly certoin. The

reloting to ony provision is presenled in the stotement of finonciol performonce net

hs

rhs ore recognized when the Council hos o present obligotion (legol or conslructive)
It of o post event, it is proboble thot on outflow of resources embodying economic
or service potentiol will be required to settle the obligotion ond o relioble estimote

fnode of the omount of the obligotion. Where the Council expects some or oll of o
h to be reimbursed, for exomple, under on insuronce controct, the reimbursement

6imbursement.

ifr future events not wholly within the control of the Council in the notes 10 the
I stolements. Contingent ossets ore ossessed continuolly to ensure thot

nt liobilities
ncil does noi recognize o contingent liobility, but discloses detoils of ony
ncies in the notes fo the finonciol stotements, unless the possibility of on outflow of
I embodying economic benefits or service polenliol is remote. ln lhe yeor under

review t re were no ony contingent liobilities.

nt ossets

cil does not recognize o contingent osset, but discloses detoils of o possible osset

$xistence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
The Co
whose
uncert
finonci
develo ents ore opproprioiely reflected in the finonciol stotemenls. lf it hos become

Certoin thot on inflow of economic benefits or service potentiol will orise ond

t's volue con be meosured reliobly, the ossei ond the reloted revenue ore
d in the finonciol stotements of the period in which the chonge occurs.
purpose of reserves
ore creoted ond mointoined in terms of specific requirements. The Council's

copitol pnd revenue reserves ore mointoined for purpose of development projects,
nt liobilities ond copitol commitments thot become poyoble. Revoluotion Reserves

honges in fixed ossets since lost revoluotion in 2020.
14



Kenyo Leolher Develapmenl Council
Annvol Repotl e Flnqnclql Srolementt lot lhe yeot ended 3Or June, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

m) Chonges in occounling policies ond eslimotes
The Council recognizes the effects of chonges in occounting policy retrospectively. The

effecis of chonges in occounting policy ore opplied prospectively if retrospeciive
opplicotion is improcticol.

n) Ernployee benefits
Reliremenl benefil plons
Defined benefit plons ore post-employment benefit plons other thon defined-coniribution
plons. The defined benefit funds ore qctuoriolly volued lri-onnuolly on the proiected unit
credit melhod bosis. Deficils identified ore recovered through lump sum poyments or
increosed future contributions on proporiionol bosis lo oll porticipoting employers. The

contributions ond lump sum poyments reduce the postemploymenl benefit obligotion.

The Council operotes o defined contribution ond defined benefit scheme for its employees.
The defined contribution scheme is odministered by o trustee ond is funded from
conkibution from bolh the employee ond employer ot 7.5% ond l5% of the bosic solory
respectively. The contributions to fund obligotions for the poyment of retirement benefits ore
chorged ogoinst income in the yeor in which they become poyoble.

o) Foreign c urrency tronsoclions
Tronsoctions in foreign currencies ore initiolly occounted for of the ruling role of exchonge
on the dote of the ironsoction. Trode creditors or deblors denominoted in foreign currency
ore reported of the stolement of finonciol position reporiing dote by opplying the exchonge
rote on thot dote. Exchonge differences orising from the settlement of creditors, or from the
reporting of crediiors ot rotes different from lhose of which they were initiolly recorded
during the period, ore recognized os income or expenses in the period in which ihey orise.

Cunently there ore no foreign exchonge tronsoclions done.

p) Borrowing c osts

Borrowing costs qre copiiolized ogoinst quolifying ossets os port of property, plont ond
equipment. Such borrowing costs ore copitolized over the period during which lhe osset is

being ocquired or conslructed ond borrowings hove been incurred. Copitolizotion ceoses
when conslruction of the osset is complete. Further bonowing costs ore chorged to the
stotemeni of finonciol performonce.

q ) Reloted porties

The Council regords o reloted porly os o person or on entity with the obility to exert control
individuolly or jointly, or to exercise significont influence over the Entity. or vice verso.

, . Members of key monogement ore regordecl os reloted porties ond comprise the Boord of
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rs, the CEO, divisionol directors, senior monogers ond heod of vorious deportments
he Council.
lconcession orrongemenls
pncil onolyses oll ospecls of service concession orrongemenis thot il enters into in

fninO the oppropriote occounting treotmeni ond disclosure requirements. ln

[r, where o privote porty contributes on osset to the orrongement, ihe Council
es thot osset when, ond only when, it controls or regulotes the services the operotor
vide together with the osset, lo whom it must provide them, ond ot whot price.

Cose of ossets other thon 'whole-of-life' ossets, it controls, through ownership,
hl entitlement or otherwise - ony significonl residuol interest in the osset ot the end
lrongemenl. Any ossets so recognized ore meosured ot their foir volue.
I

extent ihot on osset hos been recognized, the Council olso recognizes o
corres nding liobility. odjusted by o cosh considerotion poid or received.

p cosh equivolents

il cosh equivolents comprise cosh in hond ond cosh ot bonk, shortJerm deposits on
highly liquid investments with on originol moturity of three monlhs or less, which ore

iP

6

nvertible to known omounts of cosh ond ore subject to insignificont risk of chonges
Bonk occount bolonces include omounts held ot the Cenkol Bonk of Kenyo ond ot
ommerciol bonks ot the end of the finonciol yeor. li is the policy of the Council to
lhe finonciol institutions where such omounts ore held.

{tive figures

ecessory comporotive figures for the previous finonciol yeor hove been omended
or reco gured to conform lo ihe required chonges in preseniotion.

nl events
e been no events subsequenl to ihe finonciol yeor end with o significonl impoct
onciql stotements for the yeor ended June 30, 2023.

NT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The pre roiion of the Council's finonciol stotements in conformily with IPSAS requires

fi

1

rfrent to moke judgments, estimotes ond ossumptions thot qffect lhe reported
lof revenues, expenses, ossets, ond liobilities, ond the disclosure of contingeni
pt the end of lhe reporting period. However, uncertointy obout these ossumptions

ond esti oies could result in outcomes thot require o moteriol odjustment to lhe corrying
f the osset or liobility offected in future periods.



Kenyo Leorher Develaprr,ent Council
Annu(,l Repod & Flnonclol Slolemenl! lot the yeq ended 3Oh June, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS (Continued)

Eslimoles ond ossumplions
The key ossumplions concerning the future ond olher key sources of estimotion uncedointy -

ot the reporting dote. thot hove o significont risk of cousing o moteriol odjuslment 1o the
corrying omounts of ossets ond liobilities within the next finonciol yeor, ore described below.
The Council bosed its ossumptions ond estimotes on porometers ovoiloble when the

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAt STATEMENTS (Conlinued)

consolidoted finonciol stotements were prepored. However, existing circumstonces ond
ossumptions obout fulure developments moy chonge due to morket chonges or

circumslonces orising beyond Control of the Council. Such chonges ore reflecied in the
ossumptions when they occur (IPSAS I .140)

Useful lives ond residuol volues
The useful lives ond residuol volues of ossets ore ossessed using the following indicotors to
inform potentiol future use ond volue from disposol:

o) The condilion of the ossei bosed on lhe ossessment of experts employed by the Council
b) The noture of the osset, its susceptibility ond odoptobility to chonges in technology ond

processes

c) Avoilobility of funding to reploce the osset

d) The noiure oi the processes in which lhe osset is deployed
e) Chonges in the morkel in relotion to lhe osset

Provisions
Provisions were roised ond monogement delermined on estimote bosed on the informotion
ovoiloble. Addiiionol disclosure of these eslimotes of provisions is included in Note 22.

Provisions ore meosured ot the monogemeni's best estimote of lhe expendiiure required to
sellle the obligotion ot the reporting dote, ond ore discounted to present volue where lhe
effect is moteriol. The only provision disclosed is on oudit fees, which is specific.

Projecl odminiskolive Expenses

The Council's policy is to recognize the whole GoK Gront reloling 1o copitol project under
development voie to lhe stolement of finonciol performonce ond the surplus reolized to
the stotement of chonges in nel ossets under revenue reserve. During the finonciol yeor

under review on omount of Kshs. 62,500,000 reloting to development income wos fully

recognized in line with this policy ond subsequently to stotement of finonciol position.

17
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S TO THE tlNANClAt STATEMENTS (Continued)

VERNMENT GRANTS AND CAPITATION
CURRENT GRANTS)

d

d

h

Sep-22

Dec-22

Mor-23

Apr-22

iun-23

K GRANT.DEVETOPMENT

Dec-22

Mop22

Quorterly Copitotion

Quorterly Copitotion

Quorterly Copitotion

Quorterly Copitotion

Quorterly Copitotion
Totol

46,625,000

46,625,000

42,s9s,000

25,250,000

3i,875,000

37,87s,000

3/,875,000

12,625,000

)

b
I

l

Developmenl Gronls

Development Gronts

46,625,000

182,470,000 r5r,500,000

00,000 50,000,000

- 50,000,000

62,500,000 100,000,000

863,000

2V,467

164,220

r,594,069

1,244,687 1,594,069

5

s

Iolol

ITDERTNG or sERVrcEs

ices fee of TPCSI

forServices of Koriokor CMF

er ncome

.lolol

2022-2023

Kshs

2021-2022

Kshs

Descripliontllr Monlh

2022.2023

l(*rs

2021-2022

Kshs

DescriplionPeriod Monlh Received

2022.2023

l(shs

2021.2022

l(shsDescriplion

l8



Kenyo Leother Development Council
Annuol Repod & Finonclo, Srotemenh fot the yeo( ended 30th Jvn", 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES

Electricity

Woter

Courier ond Po$oge

Doily Subsistencce Allowonce

Printing ond Stot ioneries

Newspoper Subscription

Advertisement, Aworeness & Publicity

Office Rent

Troining Expenses

Medicol lnsuronce

Hospitolily, Supplies ond Services

Consulloncy Services

Mot or Vehicle I nsuronce

Generol Office Supplies

Security Guord Services

Sonitory & Cleoning Services

Motor Vehicle Fuel ond Oil

Subscription & Membership fees

AuditFees

lnlernetConnections

Corporot e Sociol Responsibility

Strotegic Plon, Business Plon & lS0 Certificotion

Totql

I , r 99,983

50,064

iB,9r0

5,275,930

1,4/1,t50

273,820

4r0,090

20,687,626

403,580

r3,053,7r6

3,506,353

369,5/ 1

349,782

r , r 34,856

37,365

28,350

r,873,154

233,460

205,045

21,044,451

633,1 60

I 1,504,859

1,380,022

1,445,909

457,048

2,236,944

r,73r,325

132,460

454,000

7,923,702

2,6 r 0,980

7 4,669

1,080,272

590,604

1,731,324

7 69,700

/8,400

464,000

715,468

r00,000

40,000

2023

KstrsDescriplion

2022 202
,|

2a2

Ksh

2

s

l9

53,450,547 5d 45',t,665



Leol hor Developme nl C o u ncil
Repoi e Hndnclol Stotemenh lot lhe yeor 6nded 30th June, 2023

N IO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. PLOYEE COSTS

olories

Allowonce

ulerAllowonce

Allowonce

Remunerotive Allowonce

Pens & NSSF Employer Contribution

I
9.B ARD EXPENSES

oirmon's Honororio

ing Allowonces

ly Subs'stence, Trovellin g & A ccommodol ion A llowonce

geAllowonce

T nng expenses

icol lnsuronce

I
er boord expenses

I

I0. RECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

gs

iiure ond Fitlings

or Vehicle

puler ond Printas

ln ngible Aset

I

Bo

H

Leo

t 6r,626,8r0

19 ,7 64,709

8,323,034

4,803,2s6

1,602,847

11,071,231

107,191,886 107,791,728

59,006,410

r9,660,320

8,332,885

4,65i,083

867,0s3

15,270,976

768,742

4,067,500

3,394,280

555,70s

382,800

670,0?6

1,304,030

15,955,474 il,143,153

r,033,333

5,720,000

6,117,070

1,214,253

I , t 66,400

704,418

F

M

2,t51,t51

r0,6r2,r65

2,393,750

2,804,608

648,900

2,r6l,i5l

r0,936,437

900,151

353,988

T 18,620,573

Y l/

Dersc r ption

2022-2023

Kshs

2021-2022

Kshs

aI

Descriptirn

2022.2023

Kshs

2021-2022

Kshs

) a

a

I

Descriplic n

2022.2023

Kshs

2021-2022

Kshs

20

14,351,726



Kenyo Leolher Developmenl Council
Annu(,l i€.porl e Flo(J,ocao, Srqtemenl, tor lhe yeot ended 30h Juna, 2023

NOIES IO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENIS (Contlnued)

I I.REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

Motor Vehicle Moinlenonce

Moinienonce of office furniture & equipmenl

Mointenonce of Comps, Softwore ond lnlernet
Iotdl

12. Flnonce Cosls

Bonk Chonges

Tofol

I3.OPERATING EXPENSES RETATING IO CORE MANDAIE

Hides & Skin Quolily lmprovement Progromme

Copocily Building for Sector Stokeholders

Promotion & Morkeling

Tohl

579,701

231,450

143,7 57

602,289

208,400

169,219

954,908 979,908

80,559 52,367

80.s59 52,367

2,246,105

r,603,285

r,858,s80

1,366,540

r,353,760

r,330,640

s,707,970 1,050,?{0

2022-2023

Kshs

2021-2022

KshsDescriplion

2022-2023

Kshs

2021.2022

KshsDescriplion

2022.2023

Kshs

2021-2022

KshsDescriplion

14, CASH AND CASH EQUIVATENIS

Cunenl Accouni
Co$ in Hond
Iolol

170,388,788

4,817

176,905,017

48,347

170,393,605 176.?53,364

o) Cunenl occounl
Flnonclol lnsllfutlon

KCB Recunent Account
KCB Development Accounl
KCB Deposil Account
Totol

8,495,415

3,441,501

158,451,872

3,794,47 4

20,795,079

15?,315,464

2022.2023

Kshs

2021-2022

KshsDes,:ription

o,l

2t

170,388.788 176,?O5,017
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TO IHE FINANCIAt STATEMENTS (Contlnued)

EIVABTES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

poymenls

or Vehicle lnsuronce

ry Advonces - stoff

Rent

EIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Leother Pork Advonce Poyments

I7.IN NTORIES

erol office stotioneries

T

T

IC

D

Pr

onsumobles

ction Moteriols

112,440

r89,859

r/5,000

5,171,907

477,2?9 5,72?,826

197 ,493,7 42 239,099,721

191,413,142 239,099,721

3,554,r2r

1,614,740

452,850

r,r65,06r

2,303,1 39

416,546

l4l ,373

K

I

rgents, Disinfectont & Soops

nicolMoteriols

2,229,759

4,834,335

506,208

788,635

669,553

't,
f f

De scripton

2022.2023

Kshs

2021.2022

Kshs

Dt,scriplion

2022.2023

Kshs

2021.2022

l($s

2022-2023 2021.2022

KshsDes,:riplic,n Kshs

22

.,t-,

:-f

9,089,910 9,028,4?0



Kenyo Leother Deveiapmenl Councll
Annuol Repod & Finonciol Slqlemenls lot lhe yeor ended 30th June, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAt STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. PROPERTY, PTANT AND EQUIPMENT

44,000,000 r08,057,543 3l,ld6Jt2 86,'60,578 2i,495,&31 r0r,0t8,8r6 7$,605.230Asol30 June 2021

30m,s02 927,252,204Addrlions 530,914

,Ironsfers/odiusl 
menl s

Revoluolron Goh

24,1'6,1X3 r,677157,1$Asol$June2022 44,000,000 r08,057,543 31,166,$2 87,491,192 r0r,048,816

5,n5000 |0,8/4,800Addilions 664,714

Tronsfen/odjuslments

9,575,010Revoluolion Goin

44,m,000 r08,057,543 0,741,3t2 88,156206 $131,r33 r0r,048316 1,788,732r$Asol$ June 2023

-
1322,W) 31,166,$2 26,124,051 2U95,&3r l0r!48,8r6Depreciolion os ot $.06J021

9m r5rDepreciolion/Amorlizolion fo, the yeor 2,rdt, t5t r0n6,437

Depreciolion os ol 30.061022 6,4&3,453 3r,r66J92 37J60,4t0 22,$5,902 r0r,040,816

2 393 /50 10,612,165 2 804,608Depreciolion/Amodizolion lor lhe yeor 2, r6r, t5t

Depreciolion os ol $.061013 8,&4,604 33,560,r42 47,172,655 25rm,589 t0r,048116

Ia ll

Asot$ fr)l 7$tffi^zs

2,rm.35r rJr/r5/,r3)NNAs ot 30

rJ88J32213Asol30 NN s,CIt0,711

[onOO

i
I

t

luilding

I

[rh,
I

i

i tumflure,

vehiclelO: filfngst

,tquipmenh

IShr i lstu

Compulels0 llontl,CopihlWotkln
Iotol

lftinhn: iltochinery Progres

Cod l(Sht $hs , Itu l(ths

E

IIII
JIJ:

I
IIIIIIIlltlt,:
@@E@
!@@E@E@@
@E@E@E@

1,143,334Jt0

930 /83,62

,,074,r18109

tn ,2t 1,51

I 5/5 00

2fr0,16152:t

r84,15739

13,99/,730

r98,455,13'

)t,971,6t)

2r6,0610',

n

Nole:

i). The Council corried out voluolion of oll its motor vehicles during ihe yeor
2022/2023. The reported revoluotion goin for this closs will be deprecioled at 25%.

Next voluotion con be done ofler lhree yeors in Iine wilh IPSAS i7 ond hence the
NBV for FY 202212023 forms the depreciotion volue for the yeor under review.

ii). The Plonl ond Mochinery is olso fully deprecioted ond voluotion sholl be in the nexl
finonciol yeor.

./ -7
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TO THE FINANCIAt STATEMENTS (Continued)

ANGIBTE ASSETS

DE AND OTHER PAYABTES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

udii Fees

loff Pension

ONTRACTORS RETENTION FU NDS

enyo Leolher Pork

ongible Asets

dtol

,lii , rl(

464,000

367,633

464,000

83r,633 464,000

254,58r

il0,625

152,016,000156

I

ol30 June 2021 562,600 241,850 804,450

Addilions 728,000 7,933.03r 8,66r,031

ol30 June 2022 r.290.600 241,850 7,933,03r 9,465,48r

Addilions r,305,000 3,r73,3r3 4,478,313

ol30 June 2023 2.595,600 241,850 I 1.1 06.344 13,943,794

epreciolion os ol 30.06.202 I 281,300 210,512 491,813

Amorlizolion for the yeor 3r,338322,650 353,988

preciolion os ot 30.06.2022 603,950 241,850 845,800

,4 morl izot ion for I he yeor 648.900 648,900

preclolion os ol 30.06.2023 1,252,850 241,850 1,494,700

r9d8r

COSI/'VATUAIION Soflwore Bronding WP Tolol

r\morlizolion & IMPAIRMENT

I

I
I

IIET BOOK VATUES

fi

!
!

t:
!!:
ii;

ffiItru!F:irl[:-B
reffiffifl4&ffiBri: a

rl reffi
2022.2023

Kshs

2021-2022

Kshslkmriplion

2022.2023

Kshs

2021-2022

Kshst)escription

24

157,365,206 r 52,0r 6,000



Kenyo Leolher Development Council
Al,neol xppo,l e Flnancrq, Slqtemenh ,or lhe yeat ended 3@ hne, 2m3

NOIES IO THE FINANCIAL SIATEMENIS (Continued)

22. EMPTOYEE COSTS (Coshflow)
2022-2023

Ksh s

2021 -2022
KshsDes,:riplion

Bosic Solories
House Allowonce
Commuter Allowonce
Leove A llowonce
Ot her Remunerotive A llowonce
PenJion & NSSF Employer Contribulion
Toiol

61,434,177
19.764,709
8,323,O34
4,803,256
| ,602,847

r 1,071,231

59,006,4 r 0
19,660,320
8.332,886
4,657 ,O83

867.0s3
15.270.97 6

to6,??? 253 107,7?4,72A

Nole: Ihe difference in the figure of Employee costs under stotement of finonciol
performonce ond coshflow slotement is os o result of poyoble sloff pension of Kshs.

367 ,633 ond prepoid stoff solory odvonces of Kshs I 75,000 os ol yeor end.

23.USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES (Coshflow)
2022-2023

KshsDes<:ription Kslr
202 t -20

Eleclricity
wqier
Courier ond Post oge
Doily Subsistencce Allo\^/once
Printing ond St ot ioneries
Newspoper Subscription
Advertisement, Aworeness & Publicity
Office Rent
Troining Expenses
Mecfcol lnsuronce
Hospit olity, Supplies ond Services
Contultoncy Services
Mot Or vehicle I nsuronce
Gen6rol Offlce Supplies
Security Guord Services
Sonitory & Cleoning Services
Motor Vehicle Fuel ond Oil
Subscripl ion & Memb6rship fees
Audit Fees
lnternel Connections
Corporote Sociol Responsibility
Sirotegic Plon, Business Plon & ISO Certificolion
Releose of Pension
Releose of Retention
Tolo I

I ,l 99,983
60,o64
1 a.9l o

5.27 5,930
1,47I,t50

273.820
4l o.o90

r 5,5r 5.2 r 9
403,640

r 3,053.7 r 6
3.506,353

369.571
349.742

2.610.940
1 .731 ,324

769.7o0
74.4o0

464,O@
71 5.464

r .1 34,85
37 36e
2A3{

7,923,70
3,7 r 8,304

233,4&.
205.O1

26.216.35-
633, r 6C

r r ,504.a5
l.3ao.o2
1.445.9o9

507.O3
2.9 57 ,7 I
2.236.94,4
| ,731 ,32'

950,OO
132/&
92A.Ocl,\
690.60
I OO.OGJ

40,om
4.090. r 3
4382.'t2-

44274.640 77 217,744

Nole: The difference in figure of use of goods ond services under stotement of finonciol
performonce ond coshflow stotement is os o result of inclusion of prepoyment of Kshs

5,171,906 during li' 202t /22.

25
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Lpo.rla frnoacro, Slorlcm.nh lot the yeor cndod 36 Juo., 2023

2 hqie of Property Plonl ond Equlpment Addllions

nt ond equipmenl: Additions

ecoteries for the Deriod

Relehtion for the period

(117,274,s141

(4r,605,e7e)

{4,238,58r)

(665,127,0231

(68,604,205)

(71,n9,9511 (596,522,818)

v

T

2022-2023

Kshs

2021.2022

KshsDe: :riplior

0

26
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Keoyo Leolhet Development Council
Annuol Repofl & Flnqnclo, Slorements tor lhe yeot ended 3Uh June, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

25. Finonciol Risk Monogemenl
The Council's octivities expose it to o voriety of finonciol risks including credit ond liquidily
risks. The Council's overoll risk monogemenl progromme focuses on unpredictobility of
chonges in the business environment ond seeks lo minimise the potentiol odverse effecl
of such risks on iis performonce by setting occeptoble levels.

of risk. The Council does not hedge ony risks ond hos in ploce policies to ensure thot
these risks ore minimised. The Council's finonciol risk monogement objectives ond
policies ore detoiled below:

i) tiquldity risk monogemenl
Ultimote responsibility for liquidity risk monogemenl rests with the Boord to the Council
who hove built on oppropriole liquidiiy risk monogement fromework for lhe
monogement of the Council's short, medium ond longJerm funding ond liquidity
monogement requirements. The Council monoges liquidity risk through continuous
monitoring of forecosts ond octuol cosh flows. lnsufficient budgetory ollocotions ore o
mojor risk os liobiliiies will not be sellled os scheduled.

Leslhon I
monlh

Kshs 000'

Belween l -5
monlhs

Kshs'000'

Over 5
m onlhs

Kshs'000'

Totol
Kshs'000'

At 30 June 2023
Irode poyobles
Prov isions

Deferred income
Employee benefit obligotion

832
464

832

464

Totol 1296 1,296

At 30 June 2022
Irode poyobles

Provisions

Deferred income
Employee benefit obligotion

464 464

Tolol 464 464

ii) Morket risk
The boord hos pul in ploce on internol oudit function to ossist it in ossessing the risk foced
by ihe Council on on ongoing bosis, evoluoie ond test lhe design ond effectiveness of
its inlernol occounting ond operolionol controls. Morket risk is the risk orising from
chonges in morket prices, such os interest rote, equity prices ond foreign exchonge rotes
which wirlnffecl the Council's income or iis purchosing iower. The objective of morket
risk rrroncrgem;nt is to,monoge ond control morket risk expos-lres within occeptoble

t/
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TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

rometers, while optimising ihe return. Overoll responsibility for monoging morket risk
ts with the Audit ond Risk Monogement Committee.

e Council's lnternol Audit Deportment is responsible for the development of deloiled
monogement policies (subject to review ond opprovol by Audit ond Risk

nogement Committee) ond for the doy-lo-doy implementolion of those policies.
re hos been no chonge to the Council's exposure to morket risks or the monner in
ich it monoges ond meosures the risk.

reign currency risk
e Council does not engoge in foreign currency tronsoctions ond therefore no
nsoctionol currency exposures. Such exposure orises ihrough purchoses of goods ond

rvices thot ore done in currencies other thon the locol currency.

eresl role risk
erest rote risk is the risk thot the Council's finonciol condiiion moy be odversely

ffected os o result of chonges in interesl rote levels. lts interest rote risk orises from
nk deposits. This exposes the Council to cosh flow interest rote risk. The interest rote risk

xposure orises moinly from interest rote movements on the Council's deposits.

onogemenl of inleresl rote risk: - To monoge the inleresl rote risk, monogement hos
deovoured to bonk with inslitutions thot offer fovouroble interest rotes.

tir volue of finonciol ossels ond liobilities

lnonciol lnslrumenls meosured ol foir volue
eterminotion of foir volue ond foir volues hierorchy. IFRS 7 specifies o hierorchy of
luotion lechniques bosed on whether the inputs to those voluotion techniques ore

bservoble or unobservoble. Observoble inputs reflect morket doto obtoined from
ent sources; unobservoble inputs reflect the eniity's morket ossumptions. These
of inputs hove creoted lhe following foir volue hierorchy:
- Quoted prices (unodjusted) in octive morkets for identicol ossets or liobiliiies.

i This level includes listed equity securities ond debt instrumenls on exchonges.
q Level 2 - lnputs other thon quoled prices included within Level I thot ore observoble

for the ossel or liobility, either directly (ihot is. os prices) or indirectly (tho1 is, derived
from prices).

6 Levet 3 - inputs for the osset or liobility thot ore not bosed on observoble morket doto
(unobservoble inputs). This level includes equity inveslments ond debt instruments with

, significonl unobservoble components. This hierorchy requires the use of observoble
morket doto when ovoiloble. The entity considers relevont qnd observoble morket
prices in ils voluotions where possible.

Ihe following toble shows on onolysis of finonciolond non- finonciol instrumenis recorded
bt foir volue by level of the foir volue hierorchy:

Iq
$I

T
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NOIES TO IHE FINANCIAt STAIEMENIS (Contlnued)

Quol ed equity invest ments

Non- finonciol Assets

lnveslment property

Lond & Building

Iolol
143,412,939 143,412,39

I'|il,412.939 143412,939

TololLevel I

At 30 June 2023

Level 2 level 3

At 30 .lune 2022

Quot ed equity invest menls
Non- finonciol Assets

lnveslment property

Lond & Building

Iolol

Revoluolion reserve
Revenue Reserve
Copitol reserve
Toiol funds

T ot ol borrowings
Less: cosh ond bonk bolonces
Net debt/(excess cosh ond cosh equivolents)

2,21 6,496.54A 2,1 62,e13,958

145,574,090 145,574,090

It15,574,090 145.574,090

There were no tronsfers between levels I ,2 ond 3 during the yeor.

v) Copllol Rlsk Monogemenl
The objective of the entity's copitol risk monogement is to sofeguord the Council's obility
to continue os o going concern. The entity copilol structure comprises of the following
funds:

58,456,8r 6
274,549,1 5a

1.479,490,664

48,88r,8r6
234,241 .478

1 .879,490.664

170.393.605
(r 70,393,605)

't76,953,364
(176,9s3,364)

Georlng OV" O7o

26. Reloted Porly lronsoclions

o) Nolure of reloled porty relotionshlps
i) Entities ond other porties reloted to the Council include those porties who hove

obility to exercise conlrol or exercise significont infiuence over ils operoting ond
,rfi.noneiol decisions. Reloted porlies include mo;r.:gernent personnel, lheir ossociotes
:ernd .:iose fomily members. The Council is reloled tor Key Monogement.

29
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lt ,o tt t FrNANcrAt sTATEMENTs (conrinued)

ii) The Notionol Government;
iii) The Poreni Ministry: Minislry of Agricullure ond Livestock Development
iv)Boord Members
v) Export Processing Zones Authority (EPZA)
vi)Noirobi Cily County Government (NCCG)
eloled porly lronsfers

fere were no lronsfers mode to/ond from the top monogement slqff.

c) e from reloted porlies

NO

b)

27.

heIe ere no dU s om op monoo men o( rom e oU nC m m dU n ns efl ht f h b h

6or tt nd I r e

d) e lo Ie o ed portiest
re t no dU s to o nd om m n s n s o o c de o rtmen s dUn nv e penodfr t ht r p h

nder review.

ment informotion
Council operotes wilh Couniy Governmenis ond specificolly in the proximity of

irobi ond does hove bronches in Thiko ond Koriokor. Hence IPSAS l8 on segment
porting is noi opplicoble

28. nlingenl ossels ond contingenl liobilities
he close of business on 30th Jvne,2023, the Council did not hove ony contingent osset

o iobility.

r

C

29.C pilol Commilments
the close of business on 30th June 2023, the Council did not hove ony copitol

;'nmitments.

30. {nh ofler the reporling period
T ere wos no moteriol odjusling evenls ofter the reporling period

UI

D lvelopment. lts ultimote porent is the Government of Kenyo.

le ond Holding Council
Council is o Siote Corporotion/ or o Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under
Ministry of Agriculture ond Livestock Developmenl; Slote Deportment of Livestock

32.

13
T

t

T

Reporting Currency
finonciol stotements ore presented in Kenyo Shillings (Kshs).

30
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Annudl Repotl & Flnonciol Sldlemenl.lot lhe yeot Ended 30h Jone,2023

APPENDIX l: lmplementolion Slolus of Audilor-Generol's Recommendotlons

The lollowing is the summory of issues roised by the externol ouditor, ond monogement comments thot were provided to the
ouditor. We hove nominoted focol persons to resolve the vorious issues os shown below wilh the ossocioted time frome within
which we ex ect ihe issues lo be resolved.

'--
Dr. Issock M. Noor, PhD

\

Ref
No.

lssue / Observotions from
Audllor Monogemenl commenh

Focol
Polnl

person
Stotus

IIme
frome

I

tY 2019/2020
Properly, Plont ond Equlpment
Lond iille deed ot TPCSI noi yet
tronsferred to Council though
severol correspondences mode

TPCSI lond hod o tille deed in lhe nome of the originol
truslees. The process ol tronsferring to the Government
is ongoing os evidenced by our numerous
communicotions with Kenyo Associolion of
Monufocturers (KAM) os oltoched.

CEO
Not

Resolved
FY

2023/24

2

Conslruction of Modern
Common Effluenl Treolment
Plonl ol Kenyo Leolher Pork -

Kenonie, Mochokos Country
Lock of finol ogreemenl ofler
the redesigning of the project. lt
is nol possible to oscerloin
whether the coniroct price slill
remoins the some os before to
ovoid future litigotions between
the EPZA, KLDC ond lhe
Conlroctor

The Controct works for 'IOMLD ond 2.5MLD effluent
treotment plonls hove nol chonged ofler relocotion 1o
o higher ground. The only component which slighlly
reduced is the effluent reticulotion lines. The coniroctor
submilted requesl for chonge proposol ond the some
wos reviewed by the Stote Deporlmenl of Public Works
ond the Joint Employers to orrive ot on estimoted
reduced volue lhol is yel to be ogreed oltogether.

CEO
Not

Resolved
FY

2023/24

Chlef Execullve Offlcer

3l
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Ken lhe t Dev e b pme ol Co uncil
iEpoi & Flnonc,ol Slolcfi.nl. fot lhe yGor cnded 301l June,2023

4 NDIX II: PROJECTS IMPIEMENTED BY THE COUNCIT
projects which the Council undertook during the yeor under review were fully funded

Y ithe Government of Kenyo, through the Ministry of Agricullure ond Livesiock
lopmeni; Stote Deporlment of Livestock Development.

PROJECT DETAII.S

It. STATUS OI PROJECTS COMPTETION

Kshs'Million'

Development of Kenyo

Leolher lndustriol Pork

201/-Dole

62.5 62.5

elopmenl of Kenyo

leother lndustriol Pork 4,m9 2,392

4,809.0 2,39r.5

TI II

a
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Kenyd Lealher Develophenl Council
Annvol leporl & Flnoncio, Slolemenb for lho ye andad 30,h June, 2023

APPENDIX lll: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

The tronsfers which the Council received during the yeor under review were oll from tl,
Notionol Treosury, through the Ministry of Agriculture ond Livesiock Developmenl; Stote
Deportmeni of Liveslock Development.

The obove omounts hove been communicoted to reconc with the porent
Ministry

tt.
CPA Alberl Ariku
Monoger, Finonce & Accounls
Kenyo leolher Developmenl Council
ICPAK No. 5280

CPA Josep yomoro
Deputy A ountonl Generol
Slole Deporlmenl of Uveslock
ICPAK No. 7770

tY 202212023 FY 202112022

Kshs.Kshs.

46,625,000 25,250,000Recurrent Gronts Sep-22

Dec-22 46 ,000625 3/,875,000

Mor-23 42,595,000 37,875,000

Apr-22 37,8i 5,000

46 000625, 12,525,000Jun-23

r 82,470,000 15r,500,000Tohl

Development Gronls Dec-22 62,500,000 50,000,000

Moy-22 50,000,000

Tolol 62,500,000 r00,000,000

Grond Tolol 2M,970,000 25r,500,000

2?


